AGENDA

Town of Hooksett Town Council
Wednesday, October 24, 2018 at 6:00 PM

A meeting of the Town Council will be held Wednesday, October 24, 2018 in the Hooksett Municipal Building
commencing at 6:00 PM.

a > w e

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

CALL TO ORDER

PROOF OF POSTING

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

SPECIAL RECOGNITION

5.1. Hooksett Municipal Employee - New Hire

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

6.1. Hooksett Kiwanis- Sandra Mack, President-Elect - Community Winter Carnival

6.2.  Corri Wilson - day camp speaker/consultant

6.3. Granite Y - Tom Archer, Vice-President - day camp speaker/consultant

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

7.1. Public: 10/10/2018
TC Minutes 101018-U

7.2. Non-Public: 10/10/2018

AGENDA OVERVIEW
PUBLIC HEARINGS

9.1. Public Hearing on 2019 Proposed Charter Amendments
Staff Report - SR-18-043 - Pdf

CONSENT AGENDA

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT
PUBLIC INPUT - 15 MINUTES
NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS
15 MINUTE RECESS

OLD BUSINESS

15.1. Paving - Hackett Hill Road
Staff Report - SR-18-046 - Pdf

15.2. Old Town Hall
Staff Report - SR-18-045 - Pdf

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Page

27 - 28

29

31

Page 1 of 99



16.

17.
18.
19.

20.

15.3.

15.4.

Amendments to the Administrative Code regarding departments
department of natural and cultural resources

FY 2019-20 Budget and Warrant Articles
Staff Report - SR-18-057 - Pdf

NEW BUSINESS

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

16.7.

16.8.

16.9.

Use of Unassigned Fund Balance to lower 2018 Tax Rate
Staff Report - SR-18-056 - Pdf

Discussion regarding HFR Ladder Truck 1
Staff Report - SR-18-042 - Pdf

Scale Replacement for DPW - Recycling & Transfer Division
Staff Report - SR-18-044 - Pdf

Grant Drive Drainage Project
Staff Report - SR-18-047 - Pdf

Municipal Legal Services (RFP #18-06)
Staff Report - SR-18-049 - Pdf

Health Insurance Renewal Rates Effective January 1, 2019
Staff Report - SR-18-053 - Pdf

Fall Tax Bill Newsletter

Staff Report - SR-18-048 - Pdf

Police Union Collective Bargaining Agreement 07/01/17-06/30/20 = Sidebar for
Union Pay Scale to include amounts for NECPI +.5%

Staff Report - SR-18-050 - Pdf

Fire-Rescue Union Collective Bargaining Agreement 07/01/19

SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS
PUBLIC INPUT
NON-PUBLIC SESSION

19.1. NH RSA 91-A:3 1l (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public
employee or the disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any
charges against him or her.

19.2. NH RSA 91-A:3 1l (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect
adversely the reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body
itself.

ADJOURNMENT

PUBLIC INPUT

1. Two 15-minute Public Input sessions will be allowed during each Council
Meeting. Time will be divided equally among those wishing to speak,
however,no person will be allowed to speak for more than 5 minutes.

2. No person may address the council more than twice on any issue in any

meeting.Comments must be addressed to the Chair and must not be personal
or derogatory about any other person.

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

33

35-57

59 - 62

63 - 84

85 -89

91

93-94

95 - 96

97

99

Page 2 of 99



3. Any questions must be directly related to the topic being discussed and must
be addressed to the Chair only, who after consultation with Council and Town
Administrator, will determine if the question can be answered at that time.
Questions cannot be directed to an individual Councilor and must not be
personal in nature. Issues raised during Public Input, which cannot be resolved
or answered at that time, or which require additional discussion or research,
will be noted by the Town Administrator who will be responsible for researching
and responding to the comment directly during normal work hours or by
bringing to the Council for discussion at a subsequent meeting. The Chair
reserves the right to end questioning if the questions depart from clarification to
deliberation.

4. Council members may request a comment be added to New Business at a
subsequent meeting.

5. No one may speak during Public Input except the person acknowledged by the
Chair. Direct questions or comments from the audience are not permitted
during Public Input.

Anyone requesting auxiliary aids or services is asked to contact
the Administration Department five business days prior to the meeting.

Page 3 of 99



Page 4 of 99



© 00 N O U b W N P

O Gy T S Y
oD WNRER O

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35

36
37
38
39
40
41
42

Agenda Item #7.1.

TOWN COUNCIL
Regular Meeting
Wednesday, October 10, 2018
6:00 PM
Council Chambers
Minutes-Unofficial

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman James Sullivan called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

PROOF OF POSTING
Proof of posting was provided by Dr. Dean Shankle.

ROLL CALL
Chair James Sullivan, John Durand, John Giotas, David Ross, James Levesque, Timothy Tsantoulis,
Donald Winterton and Alex Walczyk.

Missed: Robert Duhaime

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

SPECIAL RECOGNITION

5.1 Hooksett Municipal Employee-New Hire

Earl LaBonte, the new Public Works Director was introduced by Dr. Shankle.

E. LaBonte: I worked as the Public Works Director for a small town in Virginia. Prior to that, [ was the
Assistant Public Works Director for Lebanon, NH. You have a good Public Works Department with a lot
of good employees, I am happy to be here.

D. Shankle: Currently, Diane is working side by side with Earl until January and there are assignments for
both of them. We are keeping them both very busy.

5.2 Hooksett Police Department, Hooksett Fire-Rescue Department and David Bouchard, Veterans
Administration - Recognition by Hooksett American Legion Post 37

Bill Hooley: It is my pleasure to be here. I am representing the American Legion Merrill Follansbee Post
37. We have our current Commander and a Past Commander here to present a prestigious dedication of a
banner to the Town Council. A few weeks ago, I spoke with Dean Shankle and he put me in touch with
Donna to get on this agenda. I would like to thank Donna and Dean. This is a special presentation from
the American Legion to the Town Council and Citizens of Hooksett. I want to give a little history. Last
April, there was a Korean War Veteran who was stumbling and was mentally diminished. We had done
all we could do for him. He was not listening and we tried very hard to get him up to the VA hospital.

TC Minutes 101018-U 1

Page 5 of 99



43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51

52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61

62
63
64

65
66
67
68
69

70
71
72
73
74

75

76
77
78
79
80
81
82

Agenda Item #7.1.

However, he would not budge. The canteen manager ended up calling the Police. Two very outstanding
Police Officers came down and talked to him. Next thing we knew he was getting in the car with them to
go to the VA hospital. Those Police Officers were Jordan McCluskey and Sergeant Michael Zappala. I
can’t thank the Hooksett Police Department enough. I also had a nice opportunity to meet Chief Janet
Bouchard. She is very caring, smart and compassionate as well as a great leader. From my understanding,
the Hooksett Police Department has a new program regarding taking care of and understanding Veterans
in need. I also want to applaud this Council; you are all doing a wonderful job. I know how difficult your
job is. The Hooksett Police Department and Fire Department are both unique. I want to thank Captain
Robie for being here for his team.

My wife had heart problems and ended up having a heart transplant. Prior to that she had a device
implanted in her chest. It was battery powered and literally plugged into the wall. The Hooksett Fire
Department was aware of this new device and what a wonderful thing it was for me as the Hooksett Fire
Department to come to my door to ask about this device. I commend Chief Burkush for his group. They
asked all sort of questions to learn more about it and also asked what would happen if we lost power. The
battery pack lasted 8 hours, and it had 8 hours for reserve. The Hooksett Fire Department came up with a
plan that all we had to do was get to the fire house and we could get those batteries charged, if we had no
power. If we were unable to get to the Fire Department due to an obstruction in the road, the Fire
Department guaranteed they would come get those batteries from us, get them charged and bring them
back to us.

When the Police Officers came to speak with the veteran, their posture was perfect and they were
very professional. I found out that they were trained by some of the staff at the VA hospital. David
Bouchard was able to provide that training to the Police Department.

David Bouchard, Peer Support Specialist, Veterans Justice Outreach and Homeless Outreach for the VA
Hospital: We requested that the Hooksett Police Department invite us in to train them on how to respond
to veterans in crisis. Hooksett was our first Police Department to be trained and we are very pleased with
the results. We do have other Police Departments that are having positive results as well. If this gets the
word out for more training for any first responders, that is what we are here to do.

B. Hooley: That veteran is now living in a warm place, by himself and eating well. It is guys like David
that got him there, as well as the men and women from the Hooksett Police Department and Fire
Department. We now would like to present a banner from the American Legion Merrill Follansbee Post
37 to the Hooksett Town Council and its citizens. The presenters are the oldest living Past Commander
Leo Belisle and current Post Commander Steven Tarbox.

Chair Sullivan thanked all the presenters for their kind words and efforts.

Chair Sullivan made a motion to accept the donation from the Hooksett American Legion Merrill
Follansbee Post 37 for the troop banner, seconded by A. Walczyk. Vote unanimously in favor.

SCHEDULED APPOINTMENTS

6.1 Hooksett American Legion Post 37, Post Commander Steve Tarbox, Merrill Follansbee & Bill
Hooley-Troop Banner (completed with the Special Recognition)

TC Minutes 101018-U 2

Page 6 of 99



83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125

Agenda Item #7.1.

Taken up earlier under Special Recognitions.

6.2 Todd Rainier, Town Clerk and Marc Miville, Moderator — November 6™, 2018 mid-term
elections

T. Rainier: I will not be in town for your second council meeting this month so Nick will provide a
schedule template for you to fill out. The biggest item is everything is pointing to a large turnout. Based
on the Moderator chat rooms and Town Clerk discussions, we are looking at a 65-70% turnout which is
an excess of 7,000 voters for us. We are planning for that. School will be in session, which can
complicate traffic. We will run the same traffic pattern as the 2016 general election. The traffic pattern is
one way in from Whitehall Road, parking in the front or back, and then exiting through Farmer Road and
onto Londonderry Turnpike. We have had discussions with the school administration, the Police
Department and DPW, so everyone is on the same page. DPW and volunteers will assist with parking and
traffic flow. We will have signs put up. The Police Department plans to assist with the traffic flow at key
intersections at peak times. I do not anticipate any upsets for the school as we are in separate sections.
The leadership at the school will handle the communication with parents and the bus company. We
received the absentee ballots in on the 3%, and there are 120 out right now. We are averaging over 4 voter
registrations per day. We are requesting that all of you be present, more than you planned to be
throughout the day with assisting at the election. I appreciate your time in doing that.

M. Miville: I would like to reiterate that at the last election in September we had issues outside and I was
out there more than I should have been. We are planning to have extra people to help out and monitor the
outside and the traffic patterns. We learned our lessons from the last time and will improve on that. Todd
and I are working together to provide a smooth and safe transition for the election.

T. Rainier: We have a meeting at the State House with 5 or 6 other communities that were identified as
single polling places, with large turnouts and a large amount of same day voter registrations on Friday to
share some ideas on handling the amount of voters.

M. Miville: Those towns would be the college towns. Those would be Durham, Hooksett, Plymouth and
Hanover. They all experience very high spikes in same day registrations. They are asking us to come and
discuss how we are planning and managing that.

J. Durand: Will the teachers park elsewhere?

T. Rainier: The staff will park outback.

J. Durand: Is there enough handicapped parking?

T. Rainier: We have had no issue in the past. All handicapped parking is along the gym in the front. DPW

did fine with the 9,000 voters in 2016. I do want to impress upon the public to follow the directions of the
DPW crew while there. The folks that want to wait for the parking spot in front but that will cause

TC Minutes 101018-U 3

Page 7 of 99



126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169

Agenda Item #7.1.

repercussions with traffic entering. The DPW does a great job. At peak traffic time’s people may be
required to park out back. I just want to ask the public to please pay attention to the DPW.

M. Miville: We have ordered new signs to identify some of that. A lot of the cars parked in front of the
building are candidates and supporters and we will be asking them to park elsewhere.

T. Rainier: I will be passing along the Election Day coverage schedule to Chair Sullivan as well as two
original warrants that need signatures tonight. Once signed, those can be given to Dr. Shankle, Nick or
Donna as they need to be posted tomorrow. They are the call to voters to come and vote at the November
6t election.

PUBLIC INPUT (moved up to accommodate attendees)

Joanne McHugh, 14 Jefferson Drive: I would like to speak about the Fun in the Sun program. I heard at
the last Town Council meeting that Dr. Shankle expressed some concerns regarding the continuation of
the Fun in the Sun program next year based on safety issues. He did not think the kids were safe. He said
this year, two kids left at 9:30am and did not return until 3pm and no one noticed. He also said that we
have proven we can’t run the program and he included that unless you override him, the program will not
run next year. My first question is, were parents notified of this incident? Can you tell me what training
systems are put in place with regard to knowing the number of campers present at all times? Who is the
person or persons responsible for guarding against this type of issue? Dr. Shankle said that he had safety
concerns; can you explain what concerns you had last year except for the one about needing a Nurse?
Was the Fun in the Sun staff given training or caution about campers leaving the program without
permission? Does the program have counselors in training? What type of training did the town provide to
them? Is this something that is the responsibility of the Fun in the Sun Director under the direction of the
Parks and Rec Department to ensure that all these systems were in place? I am here because [ want you
to think about something before you decide what happens to the children of this community. Many
families that use the Fun in the Sun program are single parents and if they do not have daycare for their
kids; they would have no place to put them. These parents want to set a good example and be role models
for their kids. Otherwise, they could stay home and ask the Town for welfare assistance. We want all
children to be safe and have a healthy environment to learn and get along with their peers that develop
great life skills. What better opportunity to play with many of the same kids that they go to school with.
The bottom line is that I believe in the Fun in the Sun program because it provides needed services to
citizens of this community. If there are particular problems that have risen in the past and currently, those
problems should be addressed. We should not abandon the program because problems have risen that can
be corrected. I hope we are not repeating what happened in April 2017, where the fate of the Fun in the
Sun program was in jeopardy. The Town Council commissioned the Parks and Rec Advisory Committee
and the DPW director to study the Fun in the Sun program to address some concerns of the Town
Administrator. That committee worked diligently and came back with recommendations and those were
endorsed almost unanimously by the Town Council. Fees were increased substantially in order to provide
a Nurse that was part of a safety concern. As a Town Council it is your duty to find solutions to problems
that affect the town and its citizens and not take a cowards approach. I believe this is something we can
all work on together. Keep in mind that with patience and resolve we can make Hooksett’s Fun in the Sun
program a benefit for all the citizens. I hope you will all agree with me.

TC Minutes 101018-U 4

Page 8 of 99



170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213

Agenda Item #7.1.

Chair Sullivan: Dr. Shankle can you expand as to why we are at this point?

D. Shankle: I have spent a lot of time going over the history and thinking about how we got where we are.
The problem is not really just a few safety things that have happened. It is the culture. The culture of the
Fun in the Sun program has become dysfunctional. It is partly a result of instability and leadership. Those
two things have been playing off each other back and forth. The dysfunctional part is the “see something
say something”. That should absolutely be the mindset of a counselor in a kids program. The last 2 years,
we have had incidents that we found out about at the exit interviews. Counselors knew they did not have
control of them. Culture that is more concerned about protecting the leaders than the kids. That is beyond
a safety issue. Some of that has to be instability. Since 2012, we have had 9 directors. We have a program
that grew from 54 campers in 2012 to 130 this last year. That is without any change in the program.
Starting 3 or 4 years ago, I have been saying we need someone full time to run this. If our crime rate went
up that much, wouldn’t we add staff for that? We have that many more kids and no additional help. As far
as training, [ agree 100%. I do not know why it is not done. When Jodi Pinard was here, I suggested that
she go and talk to Merrimack as they run a good program. She did and she put together a 30 page Fun in
the Sun staff handbook. It included “How to teach a skill”, “What makes a super counselor”...etc. That
was received on May 25%, 2012. On November 30, 2017, we received a handbook with 16 pages; all of
that kind of stuff was dropped out. There became less of a concern about safety as the years went on. One
of those years, I asked about a staff handbook and the leader did not know of a staff handbook. Without
continuity of leadership, a full time person, everything was getting lost and redone. Since I have been
here, two directors have quit in the middle of the season. The other thing is we inherited this program, it
came with the building. When this was being run 20 years ago, it was being run by a Recreation Director.
For some reason as one point, Dale Hemeon was the Recreation Director. As some point they made him
the DPW Director and moved Parks and Recreation into DPW that is when Jodi took over those
programs. Then we lost all of them when Dale Hemeon left. All of the recreation side of what the DPW
Director dropped out. Jodi Pinard tried to keep it going after Dale left but then she left. Since then it has
not had any stable leadership for somebody who could concentrate on it. Jodi was here almost every day.
I think the program needs to be eliminated if there is no stability in it. I would like you to consider is
going back to where we were, splitting the Parks and Recreation department out of DPW. Making the
Parks and Recreation director responsible for Fun in the Sun and going back to where you were 20 years
ago. If you are not willing to make that split, we can’t make it work. The DPW Director can’t do it all.
Most of the Counselors said the program should not have more than 100 kids.

Chair Sullivan: The main goal was for Dr. Shankle to explain what his thoughts were. Some of the
information brought to us is new especially the last part. The main goal is to get thoughts from the
citizens, which is why we extended public input tonight.

Maureen McDonald, 13 Springwood Drive: I agree with everything Dr. Shankle said. I knew a lot of the
points already. Where my frustration lies is you run a town as the Town Manager and I do not know
where the roles and responsibilities of oversight lie. I don’t under who was responsible for the oversight
of the program. I agree there needs to be a position. The Town Manager was not overseeing it, if he had
been really overseeing, he should have been questioning instead of pointing out safety things. Which we
spent 40 hours last year as a committee looking into and we thought we addressed the problems. That is a

TC Minutes 101018-U 5

Page 9 of 99



214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256

Agenda Item #7.1.

little frustrating but I think it does help make his point. The DPW Director does not have time to do it; the
Town Manager is not going to do it. The program is getting a bad rep. Most of the Counselors are in their
20’s; they would talk about safety and what they do when it is hot. They talked about headcounts they did
under Steve, they used walkie talkie and reported how many kids they had. If there was an actual
handbook of safety procedures and protocols, that may alleviate some issues. It is important to mention
that we had great counselors, all of them were great and they learned a lot every year. However, none of
them felt that any of them in place should be the Director next year because they do not have the
experience or leadership. If reducing the numbers of campers needs to happen, then do it. Aside from the
incident this summer, everything went smoothly. I have long been frustrated with the amount of work that
Diane has on her plate. One person taking on that much work should not happen; it is too much inefficient
use. If for some reason, it does not move forward, I ask that you consider having a professional look at the
program. Look at if there is a way to save it.

D. Shankle: In terms of who we hire for the Directors position, we hire whoever applies. Even the
counselors this year, we hired everyone except one, we had to hire them because we needed them. In the
last 3 years, we have not had any more than 2 applicants for the Director’s position. In terms of the
Director, they have changed them year after year. When it comes to oversight, Diane does not have time
to do it.

Robin Lopez, 42 Bert Street: My daughter has been going to this program since she was 5. This is the first
time I have heard of the significant concerns safety wise. I agree with Dr. Shankle as far as the safety
concerns. I think there is definitely room to make improvements. I work in healthcare where change is
constant and leadership changes frequently. We are able to adapt and provide safety to our patients. |
strongly believe we need to look forward and find ways to improve. Your suggestion to reach out to other
programs is a good idea. This is a great program for residents. [ have no complaints, my daughter loves
the program. When you hire new staff, what is their onboarding process? How do we gain confidence that
they can do the job and they have read the handbook? The other thing I heard was the staff was
uncomfortable reaching out with safety concerns. I work under a term called “just culture”. There should
be an allowable anonymous reporting. When you follow through with those reports is not a slap on the
hand, it is an educational process. I would love to see the program stay. I do agree 100% with the size of
the program and the fact that these are children that we are supposed to be keeping safe while the parents
are likely working to provide for their family that we should be making sure it is a safe environment for
them and we have someone working full time. As a tax payer and someone living here, I am more than
happy to make sure that happens and funds are put aside for that.

April Kendall, 7 Seasons Drive: I’d like to give another take. As a professional, models are always
adapting and changing. It would be remised if we weren’t to think that a program would need stability
and need to see some change and adaptability. It is very unfortunate as a Council that you would not look
at that opportunity and instead would close the books. Last year, there was a lot done by the advisory
board, by appointing a Parks and Recreation Director or someone to be responsible there is no reason that
this program can’t sustain and move forward. From a safety standpoint, there was no communication
regarding what happened. If anything happens, parents should be notified.

TC Minutes 101018-U 6

Page 10 of 99



257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300

Agenda Item #7.1.

Amy Gioseffi, 7 Autumn Run: My son attended for the first time this year. He grew and met new friends.
We were never told about anything concerning. It was always “we were in our groups, we stayed with our
groups”. To hear something after the season has completed, was very shocking. I do not know the details.
There were lots of safety items that were addressed. All Counselors were able to tell me what would
happen in any situation. If that handbook was done 6 years ago, there should have been an electronic
version stored.

Sarah Mackey, 39 Joanne Drive: Dr. Shankle spoke about culture and culture change. That starts from the
top down. I don’t know if there was adequate oversite. I do not believe there were any audits done on any
processes. The handbook should be electronically stored. There should be process control for the entire
town; to me this says there is a system and culture problem so people can be trained for their job. The
culture problem is there are no processes in place. That should be looked into. Director Boyce is
overburdened and it can’t be done by her. I would support the separation of the Parks and Recreation
Department from Public Works. I did contact another town recently, took a day off, went to Raymond,
they happily gave me their camp manual and packet and sat with me for over an hour regarding safety
concerns and how they do things. Either we don’t have time or we are not prioritizing training. Dr.
Shankle and other members of the Town Council were vocal about their concerns on safety and I did not
see anyone check on those concerns. My concern is the follow up that did not happen. We spent a lot of
time as a board going through this stuff. It is disheartening that I don’t think any of it was taken to heart at
all. It is very demotivating to continue to do stuff like this. We worked really hard and reviewing
processes and procedures for safety concerns and holding fire drills and whatever needed to happen was
given as a recommendation and I am not sure if they even did fire drills as this point. I would like to see
you look more into the process controls. It is common sense so it does not matter who is in the role, no
matter who you have in place for that role, they can do that job because there is a manual in place telling
them how to do their job. The manual will not replace common sense. It does give you some guidance
and if you don’t know, you ask someone. I am not sure if [ can answer anything but I am the only one
here from the Parks and Recreation Committee including the Town Council Rep so I am certainly willing
to do so.

D. Shankle: I hate to put her on the spot but Diane is here.

OLD BUSINESS (moved up to accommodate attendees)

15.1 Fun in the Sun

D. Boyce: I think we tried to initiate a lot of the plan that the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee
worked hard on. We had a shortage of counselor’s right before the start of the year so we had to adjust a
few things as far as some field trips. We could not be unsafe and have a shortage of councilors for field
trips. I know some recommendations were to do an older and younger field trip. This year we did do an
older field trip but all the kids wanted to go. The Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee and I thought
we had a fantastic year except for the incident. There were incident reports available on the table. I truly
believe that this incident was known and I think the employee was trying to be a friend not a counselor.
People were aware of this incident and it should never have happened because the employee was not
doing their job. That can’t be controlled all the time.

TC Minutes 101018-U 7

Page 11 of 99



301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344

Agenda Item #7.1.

Chair Sullivan: Was this incident reported and were people were informed?

D. Boyce: We had incident reports were available. I believe we should keep this program. As far as the
suggestion of separation, I fully believe that we need someone to oversee this program and start others in
town. I was there a lot at camp, as well as Evelyn and Phil. The councilors all knew they could direct their
questions to us. We never put up a wall and always wanted to hear what was going on. It was unfortunate
to hear a lot of issues at exit interviews. The counselor’s always have the opportunity to come to us.

D. Ross: I never agreed to the prior reorganization. You can’t put one person in charge of so many
functions. Parks and Recreation, Public Works and Recycling and Transfer are all different departments
and should be operated as such. Their goals and purposes are different and they have nothing in common
other than the transfer of help so we can be more efficient. It was always an employee under the Director
that ran the program. I would like to see these departments broken back down into separate departments.
There is too much underneath one person so they can’t manage everything. We should recreate and
reestablish Parks and Recreation and under the department head is a designee to run the program.

Chair Sullivan: The program has been around for a long time. We went too far putting too much
responsibility under one person regardless of how great the person is. For this to occur it should be under
a separate department and hire persons qualified on how to run programs such as this. To accomplish this
goal, we would create a Parks and Recreation department head that would have someone in that
department be responsible for this program. Can that be accomplished now? Is there funding? Would that
mean this program would be under their jurisdiction?

D. Shankle: There was some concerns about the fact that there was a warrant article to create a full time
Parks and Recreation Director and that this might go against that. [ do not see it as the same thing as it
would be a department head; it is not creating a new position. I would try to find a way to separate out the
positions and as we always do, give the inside people the first opportunity to apply for the position and if
we have someone now that doesn’t really have the training, we could get them the training, I would be
open to that idea. If you were willing to do that, I would not suggest adding any positions and stick with
what we have already. I don’t need a vote tonight. I will get a consensus and do it the way the charter and
administrative code lays out which is a change to the organizational chart and create a job description.

Chair Sullivan: Once that occurs, a vote on that would allow programs such as this and others in the
domain of the Parks and Recreation Director.

D. Shankle: Parts of the job description would be to develop recreational programs and run Fun in the
Sun.

D. Winterton: Thank you everyone who gave public input. It is not common that we have many seats
filled. I have already talked with and have a commitment from the Vice President of Camping for Granite
YMCA to come and talk with us at the next meeting. The 50 year Camp Administrator is willing to talk to
us about camping. I did invite the gentleman, with the approval of Dr. Shankle, to walk through the Fun
in the Sun program and the first thing he said was “this is a disaster waiting to happen.” He watched

TC Minutes 101018-U 8

Page 12 of 99



345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386

Agenda Item #7.1.

children go to the bathroom alone, or with one counselor. That does not happen in camps that are well
trained. Thank goodness that nothing happened to those two young boys that were gone from camp when
they were in the charge of this town. Unless training is done extensively, unless councilors learn they
don’t talk to each other face to face, they talk back to back, if they want to talk, it may not work. Anytime
a child moves attendance should be taken again. Major camps in this State have had major lawsuits. The
word “daycare” was mentioned. My proposal will be to either bring in an outside organization to run a
camp here to remove the town liability or to give scholarships to needy kids from the Town of Hooksett
for surrounding camps. Funding can come from funding I tried to add last year to the Family Services
budget. The thing I care most about is that the kids that need to go to camp go to camp. I don’t think the
town needs to run a daycare. We have sufficient funds or can get sufficient funds for them to go to the
YMCA, or Allenstown runs a day camp with the Concord Boys Club. I am petrified to run a camp here
where the counselors and supervisors are inadequately trained and the level of oversight are by people
who are overworked and not trained in the supervision of camps. The voters of Hooksett voted no to the
Parks and Recreation Director. Sitting here, I am very reluctant to tell the voters of Hooksett that I don’t
care what they say; I am going to do what I want to.

T. Tsantoulis: The biggest reason that Fun in the Sun has been popular in the years is because it does not
cost a lot of money compared to other programs. That is a big driver. There are a lot of good things about
a town run program including comradery. We are in a situation where in order to provide the programs
that we need to provide and isolate the town from liability there is one thing that needs to happen to that
program, it will cost a lot more money. The money will be in the form of taxes or the program fees or
both. I am thankful for the parents who showed up tonight, I understand where you are at. Where are we
going to get the best for our children on a daily basis? I have no background in managing camps; I don’t
know how to make a decision. I am smart enough to know that wherever we head with this, be prepared
that there will be a financial impact.

J. Levesque: For a Parks and Recreation Director, I estimate $50,000/ yr. plus benefits. If there are 125
children, it would cost $640 per child to pay this person. The program only lasts 12 weeks, and there are 3
or 4 weeks ahead of that for training. What is this person going to do the rest of the year? We would have
to keep them busy. We would be better off trying to contract with an existing camp to take those kids as
they are all trained and have the proper counselors and procedures in place.

D. Shankle: If you want to keep the program, I suggest that this is what is done. What was done before is
that we had a separate department and department head overseeing parks all year round and recreation
programs all year round. That person would be paid as a department head out of the regular tax payers.
Those expenses wouldn’t go on the camp which is part of the reason the costs were kept down. Part of the
problem with training is the counselor’s we bring in have no time. They get 8 hours of training over a
weekend then the kids would be there.

J. Durand: Even with experienced daycares and camps, accidents happen. We are back to the lability
factor.

TC Minutes 101018-U 9

Page 13 of 99



387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429

Agenda Item #7.1.

J. Giotas: I want to see the Fun in the Sun program continue. We did dodge a huge bullet this past
summer. If we can get someone to run it, I would be in favor. If we are just hiring everyone that shows up
because we can’t find counselors, that does not solve our problem.

A. Walczyk: I don’t think anyone wants this program to be finished. There have been a few suggestions
with long and short term results. It is more of a culture. Mr. Hooley spoke about the Fire Department and
Police Department culture that is a bigger thing than one person. That is important, something to look
forward to as an end goal. Short term is we need to evaluate program as it stands right now. I think it is
great that Councilor Winterton took it upon himself to have that done. It deserves to be evaluated.

D. Ross: We have not addressed the fact that it is not our jobs. We have a department; it is their job to
figure out how to do this. We are the governing body. When they talk about liability, this is not unusual,
the insurance companies know. There are too many things under one person. We need to reallocate
resources. It is a worthy thing for us to do. We are not the only town.

T. Tsantoulis: An awful lot of time and energy goes into this program. The DPW director ran this
program for a number of years and put her heart and soul into it and I believe that everyone is aware of
that. The DPW Director is the one in charge of the Fun in the Sun. The DPW Director’s responsibilities is
plenty for an average individual, we are very lucky for getting away with what we did certainly because
of the individual running the program. Every problem has a solution. Regardless, it is very important to
recognize the efforts of Diane Boyce for the number of years.

Chair Sullivan made a motion to have the council direct the Administrator to look into the
reorganization of the current Public Works Department, seconded by T. Tsantoulis.

Chair Sullivan: I was probably here when the original reorganization took place. My thinking and rational
to change things was based on the information provided to us and it made sense at that point. With this
Council, when there is an issue that we find, we take the time to listen and react and come up with a
solution. The discussion tonight is helpful; the direction we are going makes sense.

Vote unanimously in favor.
D. Winterton: If it is the Councils consensus, we can invite Mr. Archer, Vice President of Camping at the
Granite State Y, who oversees about 8-10 camps, with 50 years’ experience in the YMCA, to attend a
meeting as a scheduled appointment, to discuss camping in general. It may lead to some sort of advisory

position, contractual position or to invite him to say hi and thanks for coming.

T. Tsantoulis: That would be an excellent idea. Perhaps we should let Dr. Shankle meet with him first.
We would benefit from a visit.

Chair Sullivan: I would take that approach as well. Have him come in but ask Dr. Shankle to reach out
with him and meet with him.

TC Minutes 101018-U 10

Page 14 of 99



430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473

Agenda Item #7.1.

D. Winterton: Is it the consensus that yes, we would like to hear from him but perhaps not at the next
meeting?

J. Giotas: I think the sooner the better.

D. Winterton: I have talked to him. He will be watching the video to see where we are at. He is willing
and able to come in two weeks.

Chair Sullivan: He should meet with Dr. Shankle first. We can certainly put him on the 24t agenda if the
Council wants.

J. Giotas: I think we should have him come in. The more information we can get the better.
15 MINUTES RECESS

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

7.1 Public: 09/19/18

T. Tsantoulis made a motion to approve the 09/19/18 public minutes as amended, seconded by J.
Giotas.
D. Winterton presented an amendment:
1. Line 199: should read State DRA not state system.

D. Ross presented an amendment:

2. Line 105: Change swap to swat. Clarify that it is the Central NH Operation

D. Winterton would like the line to read:

“...to increase the budget by $2,000 so the Chief could choose a different swat team unit than the Central
NH Special Operation Unit which has dues of $3,000.”

T. Tsantoulis present an amendment:
3. Line 104: motion was presented by Councilor Winterton

Vote unanimously in favor.
7.2 Public: 09/26/18

J. Levesque made a motion to approve the 09/26/18 public minutes as amended, seconded by T.
Tsantoulis.

T. Tsantoulis presented amendment request by resident Marc Miville:

1. Line 804, 805 and 807: principals should be principles.

2. Line 810: admiral should be admirable.

3. After line 810: add “she worked from 7am-11pm as my assistant moderator.”

TC Minutes 101018-U 11

Page 15 of 99



474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517

Agenda Item #7.1.

D. Ross presented an amendment:
4. Line 748: specify it is CMC urgent care
5. Line 777: there are mitigation fees involved.

Vote unanimously in favor.
7.3 Non-Public: 09/26/18

Chair Sullivan made a motion to approve the 09/26/18 non-public minutes, seconded by A. Walczyk.
Vote unanimously in favor.

AGENDA OVERVIEW

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Chair Sullivan: The reason the public hearing listed on the original agenda is not here is because the State
requires posting of public hearings for charter amendments but there was a miscommunication with the
posting for the Union Leader. The hearing for tonight for that has been reposted and will be heard on
October 24t

CONSENT AGENDA

10.1  Donation of a troop banner valued under $5,000 from the Hooksett American Legion Post 37 to
the Town of Hooksett per RSA 31:95-¢, II (see scheduled appointment for further details).

Taken up earlier in the meeting under Special Recognitions.

10.2  Motion to accept the donation of the two kennels and one grooming service for a combined total
of $2,850.00 from Blue Ribbon Companies and Four Paws Only, to the Town of Hooksett for the
Hooksett Police Department (K9 program) per RSA 31:95-¢, II.

10.3  Release of a $1,000 Landscape Surety for Aroma Joe’s

10.4  Roadway Surety Release for Jaime Lane

D. Winterton made a motion to accept the remainder of the Consent Agenda 10.2, 10.3, and 10.4,
seconded by A. Walczyk. Vote unanimously in favor.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT

Dr. Shankle:
1. Winter Carnival.
Councilor Duhaime asked that I bring this up however, I do not know much about it.

D. Boyce: I know that the Kiwanis approached the Parks and Recreation Committee and that they would
like to have a Winter Carnival that they would run.

TC Minutes 101018-U 12

Page 16 of 99



518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561

Agenda Item #7.1.

Chair Sullivan: I would request that the Parks and Recreation Chair or liaison send a request to Dr.
Shankle to get them on the agenda as the plans are new to us.

D. Shankle: They should get something to me first so I can have a recommendation.

Chair Sullivan: The Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee should make a recommendation to the
Council.

D. Shankle: Kiwanis should come to you or talk to me first as the Parks and Recreation Advisory
Committee may not have all the answers.

2. Received a note from Joan Donati, a Hooksett resident, as she wanted to make you aware of what
good service Elayne Pierson gives to the Hooksett residents in the Assessing department. She
stated that Elayne is a great asset to the Town of Hooksett.

3. People are starting to ask about Halloween hours.

D. Winterton made a motion to acknowledge Trick or Treating on Halloween
(Wednesday, October 31%, 2018) from 6pm-8pm, seconded by D. Ross. Vote
unanimously in favor.

4. Donna passed on the new rates for health insurance. All of the plans are going up 9%. Dental is
going up 2.3%. We need a motion to ask Finance to come up with the new numbers and put them
in the budget.

D. Winterton: The plans that we don’t ask employees to contribute to, have gone up 9%. There should
be a discussion to ask town employees to join us in paying for some of the increase for the plans that

they currently do not pay for. The 9% increase is an increase of about $180,000.

J. Giotas: In the Health Insurance Committee meetings, the employees did not seem to mind paying
more for health insurance as long as they kept the same plans.

D. Shankle: We need more numbers for that and an agenda item. In the meantime, we would like to
bring these numbers to the Budget Committee.

Chair Sullivan made a motion to authorize Administration to add the 9% increase for health
insurance costs and the 2.3% increase for dental insurance to the Operating Budget, seconded by

T. Tsantoulis. Vote unanimously in favor.

D. Fitzpatrick: December is open enrollment. If we ask for a contribution some employees may change
plans.

5. The Kiwanis have been talking to the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee and others
regarding their plan for the Donati Field and the area behind the Town Hall. I was concerned

TC Minutes 101018-U 13

Page 17 of 99



562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
501
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605

Agenda Item #7.1.

when I saw the plan because the Community Center was proposed on State land. A copy of their
plan was sent to the State. Our lease is very clear that no permanent buildings can be on the State
land. Now we are on the State’s radar that we may buy it or they may dispose of the land. If they
decide to sell it, it is a $1.5 million evaluation. I am not considering this plan. You haven’t even
seen it. I don’t know who sent it to them. [ am going to try and find out who sent the plan to the
State.

D. Ross: It is an open ended lease?

D. Shankle: Condition #2 of the lease reads as follows:

“Upon 90 days written notice by the lessor, the lessee will remove all temporary improvements that
have been placed on the tract of land.”

Condition #4: “The lessee agrees to vacate the tract of land upon 90 days written notice should the
lessor owner anytime elect to use the tract of land for highway purposes or decide to dispose of it.”

6. We received a previous Court Order for the case with Trimbur on Corriveau Drive which he
appealed. We just received the new Court Order and his motion to reconsider was rejected. He
does need to get his stuff off of our right of way. We will need to make sure to enforce it. We are
getting attorney’s fees and costs as well.

J. Levesque: Does it give a timeframe?

D. Shankle: No, we just have to enforce it.

D. Ross: The property that is being logged, is there any way that can be logged?

D. Shankle: The problem is they have been working and keeping the equipment in the right of way.

They can drive back to the property. We never tried to stop them from logging the property. They

can’t store their equipment or products in the right of way.

7. At the September 19 meeting, Councilor Giotas asked about the status of the NHIT surplus
funds. $25,000 we should be getting back from NHIT. The Secretary of State’s office indicates

that “the matter is open and still being investigated.”

NOMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

OLD BUSINESS

152 Paving 2018

D. Boyce: It is done. The second set of core testing from Hackett Hill Road was done. The company did it
because they were concerned that the Council would have questions. The core on Cross Road was done.

When the company asked about core testing on Hackett Hill, our construction manager, Alex Cote from
Keach Nordstrom Associates, had thought no as it wasn’t requested in the beginning. GMI went ahead

TC Minutes 101018-U 14

Page 18 of 99



606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649

Agenda Item #7.1.

and did them. We do have a third party engineer ready to go for another set of core testing, if you choose.
However, every time you put a hole in the pavement, it could be a future pothole. We can’t tell if there is
tack coating in the core testing. Sometimes you can tell if there is a lot of it. We do have an independent
engineer if the council wants to do another core test.

J. Levesque: I would like that section of Hackett Hill Road done, there is no tack there.

D. Boyce: The cores that they did tests compaction and those came back great. There is a map and they
plotted where they took the core samples.

J. Levesque: Please e-mail that map to me.
Chair Sullivan: If a core test was done in the area, would that have shown whether there was tack or not?

D. Boyce: Not necessarily, GMI and the independent engineer said it is not always going to tell you if
there is tack in there.

Chair Sullivan: Earl is here, some of his prior experience was paving for airports. Could you comment on
the cores and tack?

Earl LaBonte: The core samples will give you information on the compaction and materials. Tack is
absorbed by layers of asphalts. Tack looks like streams. If there is too much it will leach out and you will
see that but generally you do not see the tack. If there is no tack, you would not tell.

J. Levesque: There was a section of road I was able to pull up.

D. Boyce: They went back and had already identified and fixed that spot.

Chair Sullivan: The council can do what they want. I don’t know if it would help to have Earl look at it
and maybe gauge something from that area.

D. Winterton: Earl, what would your recommendation be hearing the predicament we are in?

E. LaBonte: A core sample may or may not be what you want but you will put a deficiency in the
pavement which could be prone to failure before the rest of the road as it will allow the moisture to get
through.

D. Winterton: Core samples may hinder the integrity of the road?

E. LaBonte: Yes. It will not do what you are looking for.

D. Winterton: If we don’t do anything, if there was no tack put down, would you predict that that part of
the road would fail?

TC Minutes 101018-U 15

Page 19 of 99



650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693

Agenda Item #7.1.

E. LaBonte: No, years ago, they stopped using tack coat on a lot of projects as they stated it does not do
anything. The asphalt is hot and melts the layers together.

D. Ross: The pavement was shifting which brought the concern up. The question was brought up about
milling. We were told the road had so much ditching that the milling was bringing up gravel. The
question was if you are stopping before you hit the gravel, are you getting all the way down to the bottom
of the ditches? Milling is the most important part.

E. LaBonte: If you had shoving and movement underneath, you have sub grade failure already. Even if
you paved it like you are doing, you are going to get a good surface for maybe 5-6 years then it will begin
to show what you had before.

D. Ross: If they knew this, why didn’t they fix it?

E. LaBonte: You would have to do a reconstruction which would cost 7-10 times more. A milling and
overlay will not give the same as the reconstruction of the road.

D. Shankle: If you run the numbers, it makes more sense to pave.

D. Ross: We heard reports that they were concerned.

E. LaBonte: If it is a slope, sliding on that is very easy. There are certain precautions to prevent to do that.
A. Walczyk: Are we tacking pavement going forward?

E. LaBonte: Yes. About 10 years ago, the Airforce stopped using tack. However, a couple years ago they
started using it again. I can’t answer why.

D. Winterton: I say we postpone this report until Earl examines the road for us.

T. Tsantoulis: Part of what went on sounds like two different problems, shifting of pavement, if you put
down pavement that is not the right temperature; you won’t get the right final product. Is it safe to
assume, when pavement is not sticking to the subsurface that can in fact be caused by the fact that the
pavement was not warm enough?

E. LaBonte: Correct. There should be a temperature check.

D. Ross: What is the temperature it should be?

E. LaBonte: The paving temperatures are 275-300 degrees. The rolling temperatures are between 210-290
degrees.

15.3  Construction at Safety Center (Police)

TC Minutes 101018-U 16

Page 20 of 99



694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737

Agenda Item #7.1.

D. Shankle: At your last meeting, you talked about a Construction Manager. You asked the Town
Engineer to come up with pros and cons for the Construction Manager. That is in the meeting packet.
Based on that, my recommendation is to do it.

B. Thomas: It is a good idea to hire one.

D. Ross: A General Contractor is a Construction Manager. My concern is that we are going to have a
third party involved in something and there will be more than one person to blame and no one is at fault.

The architect is in charge.

A. Walczyk made a motion to ask the Administrator to hire a Construction Manager at risk
for the project, seconded by T. Tsantoulis.

D. Ross: We are adding cost to this project. We could be spending the contingency money on something
else.

J. Durand: Who is in charge of this job?

D. Shankle: It is a public building so the DPW director

J. Durand: Has a General Contractor been hired?

D. Shankle: No.

J. Giotas: Will the Construction Manager be on the job daily?

B. Thomas: I am not sure about every single day, either a portion of the day or every couple days.

D. Ross: A General Contactor will have a crew of contractors they use frequently because they trust them.
J. Levesque: Who checks on the Construction Manager?

D. Shankle: They need to do it on time and within budget. The architect checks to make sure they are
doing it per the plans and DPW will keep track of the project.

B. Thomas: I can help keep track of the project as well.

T. Tsantoulis: The problem with a General Contractor is them coming in and using all these “good ol’
boys”. The General Contractor uses specific contractors because they are available and not expensive.
Everything comes down to cost.

A. Walczyk: Construction Manager at risk would add more transparency for costs. It is a big facility with

lots of decisions to be made all the time. If we have a better understanding of what things cost as opposed
to this is what it cost for that room it may help in future projects.

TC Minutes 101018-U 17

Page 21 of 99



738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780

Agenda Item #7.1.

J. Durand: I was not around for the bridge project; did they use a Construction Manager for that?
D. Shankle: There was a contracted Engineer watching it.

D. Ross: The only difference between a contractor and a Construction Manager is instead of us approving
a full bid we are approving someone else to approve all the little bids. It takes it out of our hands. We
would get a complete bid package from the architect. You take that whole package and put it out to bid
and it comes back here and based on the reputations of the contractors, we do the hiring. It is up to us to
be wise on how to spend the town’s money as opposed to putting someone else in charge.

Roll Call Vote #1
A. Walczyk Yes
J. Levesque Yes
D. Ross No

R. Duhaime absent
J. Durand No

D. Winterton Yes
T. Tsantoulis Yes
J. Giotas Yes

J. Sullivan Yes
(6-2)

15.4  Old Town Hall

D. Shankle: There is a staff request that you table this to the next meeting.

15.5 Budgets — Fiscal Year 2019-2020

D. Shankle: I got ahead of myself and presented the insurance costs for the budget. The Finance Director
would like that on until the budget is done. The general overview of the budget was presented to the
Budget Committee. It went well. We presented the Administration, Finance, Family Services and
Assessing budgets. Tomorrow night, we are doing two departments.

NEW BUSINESS

16.1 Public Works Teamster Local 633

D. Shankle: We need to decide who is going to be on negotiating team and they would like to do the
initial negotiations on 10/18 am, 10/19 pm, or 10/24 or 10/26 after 10am.

D. Fitzpatrick: Councilor Duhaime is open to being on that team.

TC Minutes 101018-U 18

Page 22 of 99



781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798
799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824

Agenda Item #7.1.

D. Winterton: I would be willing to serve. Can we assign the committee as a whole to the bargaining
group so if someone can’t attend, someone else can? In our last negotiating session, there were two listed
councilors and if there was someone else there that took our places, they could not attend as they were not
listed as negotiators.

D. Shankle: I would not recommend that, the problem with people coming and going is they can’t get too
involved and it can become confusing.

D. Winterton: I would say that it’s been traditional for councilors to not have 100% attendance as they
can be lengthy and at weird times.

D. Fitzpatrick: Before anyone will commit, the scheduling the Teamsters are looking for is a July 1%,
2019 contract. That is going to be a pretty aggressive schedule. By the December 12 council meeting, we

would have to bring a contract to you.

Chair Sullivan: It would be a 2 2 month turn around. John Durand, Don Winterton and Robert Duhaime
will be on the Teamster’s negotiating team. The first meeting will be on 10/18 am.

D. Fitzpatrick: I will confirm exact time and location as we have a meeting on Monday, October 15®.
D. Shankle: Are those meetings going to be here?
D. Fitzpatrick: In the past, they have met here. I will send an email to their rep.

SUB-COMMITTEE REPORTS

J. Giotas: I wanted to mention that the third week in October is NH History Week. The Heritage
Commission had a documentary at the Library called “The Living Memorial” on the NH Veterans
Cemetery which Mike Horne is the Director for another day. That was put on by Dave Keddie and it
followed the family of a gold star. Today there was something at the Heads School. The School Marms
presented an 1840 lesson. On October 25 there will be pictures taken by Ernie Gould of Hooksett’s past.

Chair Sullivan: Old Town Hall Committee met and discussed pricing on items to be done prior to
occupying the building.

D. Ross: The Conservation Commission meets next week. I have nothing for Assessing.

D. Winterton: The Planning Board met on the 1% and a plan for the corner of Smyth Road and
Londonderry Turnpike was presented. The preliminary proposal is for 33 small business condos kind of
like the development on 3A that Scott Bussiere has done. They are mostly for contractors. Each unit is
1,200 square feet. There would be three buildings then another garage building. The concern from the
Planning Board among other things was what it would look like from the road. They did say the elevation
is steep and driveway would go on Smyth Road. That would cause exiting in a residential area. The top of
the buildings will be 40° above Smyth Road and Londonderry Turnpike. The real concern is the granite as

TC Minutes 101018-U 19

Page 23 of 99



825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840

841
842

843
844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867

Agenda Item #7.1.

there will be extensive blasting. There is no public water so everyone is on wells. It would be the largest
industrial development close to a residential area in the town.

The Sewer Department met on the 1%t. The design for the pump station is done; they are not in a hurry as
there has been no interest in the hotel developer. If for some reason, there is a rush, they will put for bids
in November. If not, bids will be in January. Fire Union negotiations are ongoing.

J. Levesque: The ZBA met last night. There was a cell tower presented. There was also a Commercial
Building granted on Londonderry Turnpike across from Zapora Drive. The property is located in the
MDR zone.

PUBLIC INPUT

NON-PUBLIC SESSION

NH RSA 91-A:3 II (a) The dismissal, promotion, or compensation of any public employee or the
disciplining of such employee, or the investigation of any charges against him or her.

NH RSA 91-A:3 II (c) Matters which, if discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the
reputation of any person, other than a member of the public body itself.

J. Sullivan motioned to enter the non-public session of 10/10/18 at 9:34pm, seconded by D. Winterton.

Roll Call Vote #2
A. Walczyk Yes

J. Levesque Yes

D. Ross Yes

R. Duhaime Absent
J. Durand Yes

D. Winterton Yes
T. Tsantoulis Yes
J. Giotas Yes

J. Sullivan Yes
(8-0)

Vote unanimously in favor.

J. Sullivan motioned to exit the non-public session of 10/10/18 at 9:43pm, seconded by J. Levesque.
Vote unanimously in favor (8-0).

J. Sullivan motioned to seal the non-public session minutes of 10/10/18, seconded by T. Tsantoulis.
Vote unanimously in favor (8-0).

ADJOURNMENT

J. Sullivan motioned to adjourn the public session of 10/10/18 at 9:43pm, seconded by J. Levesque.
Vote unanimously in favor (8-0).

TC Minutes 101018-U 20

Page 24 of 99



868
869
870
871

Respectfully Submitted

Leann Fuller
Recording Clerk

TC Minutes 101018-U

Agenda Item #7.1.

21

Page 25 of 99



Page 26 of 99



Agenda Item #9.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Public Hearing on 2019 Proposed Charter Amendments
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Nick Germain, Project Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Public Hearing
In accordance with RSA 49-B:5, the Hooksett Town Council hereby provides notice that it will hold a Public
Hearing in regards to a number of proposed amendments to the Town’s Charter at their next regularly scheduled
meeting, which will take place at the Hooksett Municipal Offices (35 Main Street, Hooksett, NH 03106) on
October 24, 2018,at 6:00PM. The proposed amendments are as follows: “Amendment Relative to Removal

of the Budget Committee from Town Budgeting Processes”To see if the town will vote to rescind the
adoption of a Budget Committee in accordance with RSA 32:14, and remove all mentions of the Budget

Committee in Hooksett s Town Charter Includes alterations to the following sections: Article 10. 2 removal

to the Town of Hooksett’s budgetary process offered by statute. By voting to rescind the option, and removing
all mentions of a Budget Committee from the town charter, the Budget Committee’s statutory role in town
budget-making would be removed. This would not affect a Budget Committee’s role in other local political
subdivisions, such as the School District. Amendment Relative to End of Term Dates for Elected Officials.

To see if the town will vote to amend the Hooksett Town Charter by voting to change Article 10.2.B to the
following: “Unless otherwise set forth in this Charterall elected officials in the Town shall take or continue in
office on the first day of May July next following their election and shall hold office until their successors are
elected and qualified.” Explanation: This amendment would align the terms of elected officials to the start of
the town’s fiscal year with that of Council and officials appointed by Council. Amendment Relative to
Councilor-At-Large Residency LimitsTo see if the town will vote to amend the Hooksett Town Charter

Article 3.2, by removing the third paragraph as follows: “Ne-two-CeuncHers-elected-at-large-or-appeinted-to

Page 27 of 99



Agenda Item #9.1.

fill-a—position-at-targe-shall-beresidents-of the-same-district- "Explanation: The current charter text limits the

number of potential candidates for Councilor-At-Large elections by prohibiting more than three representatives
from each district being on Council. Eliminating said paragraph would open elections to candidates normally
barred from doing so as a result of an At-Large-Council seat being occupied and unavailable to a candidate due
to their residency in a voting district matching an At-Large-Councilor not up for election. Amendment
Relative to Council Roll Call Votes To see if the town will vote to amend the Hooksett town Charter Article
3.5.D by removing the final sentence as follows: “All-votes-shall-be-recorded-by—roH-call-except-votes—on
procedural-matters:2Explanation: This amendment is intended to clarify and streamline the Council procedure
for voting on its business.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
No direct fiscal impacts anticipated for any of the proposed amendments.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

Proposed amendments would change the Hooksett Town Charter in alignment with the explanations
listed in the staff report background. Additional public hearings will be required should there be
additional amendments or alterations to the amendments proposed today.

RECOMMENDATION:
Hold the public hearing: Read through the proposed charter amendments. Listen to public comments
if applicable.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Council review to determine if they want to include on warrant.

Page 28 of 99



Agenda Item #15.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Paving - Hackett Hill Road
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Public Works
Staff Contact: Diane Boyce, Director of Public Works

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

At their meeting on 10/10/18, the Town Council had a discussion regarding Hackett Hill Road paving.
Diane had brought forth a report regarding the core testing that was taken on Hackett Hill Road and
on Cross Road. There was a question on whether or not to have an independent engineering firm
take some additional tests. At this time it was put off. The Council asked Earl Labonte (hew DPW
Director) to check the roads and ask his opinion.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
If we do core testing, the impact will be the cost of sampling and testing.

RECOMMENDATION:
Listen to the discussion from Earl Labonte regarding the paving as he inspected and to determine
whether or not additional core testing is needed.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
concur

Page 29 of 99



Page 30 of 99



Agenda Item #15.2.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Old Town Hall
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Public Works
Staff Contact: Diane Boyce, Director of Public Works

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

At their meeting on 10/10/18, the Old Town Hall Committee was in the process of gathering quotes
and bids to determine whether or not the Council should try to put money into a warrant article to get
some projects done at the Old Town Hall. It was determined at the Council meeting following this
meeting that the Committee needed more time to gather this information.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
At this time the final amount has not been determined.

RECOMMENDATION:

Discuss whether or not the Town should put a warrant article in place to raise funds for the Old Town
Hall.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation will depend on the cost data gathered.

Page 31 of 99



Page 32 of 99



Agenda Item #15.3.

Reorganization of the Public Works Director and the development of a Department of Natural and
Cultural Resources

REMOVE

Parks, Recreation and Cemeteries Division from the Department of Public Works.

ADD 3.11
The Department of Natural and Cultural Resources

The Department of Natural and Cultural Resources is responsible for protecting, promoting and
managing Hooksett’s natural, recreational and cultural resources. These resources are vital to the
economic well-being of the town and our residents quality of life.

It is, for example, responsible for the maintenance of all public playgrounds, athletic fields, parks,
equipment, and related facilities as well as the grounds of all Town owned property and natural
resources. This department is also responsible for the planning and coordination of recreational
activities, providing supervision of Town sponsored recreational activities, and overseeing the expansion
and maintenance of cultural buildings and markers.

Page 33 of 99



Page 34 of 99



Agenda Item #15.4.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: FY 2019-20 Budget and Warrant Articles
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Finance
Staff Contact: Christine Soucie, Finance Director

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
To provide Town Council and update on the FY 2019-20 operating budget and review items that may
need to be considered. Town Council's recommended FY 2019-20 operating budget is $18,896,365.

Council may want to considered the following items as new information regarding the 2019 rates has
been received:

1) Increase the budget to include the 2019 health and dental rates from $1,843,169 to $1,983,131 an
increase of $139,962.

2) Reduce the budget for Property & Liability Insurance from $224,127 to $220,810 a reduction of
$3,317.

3) Increase the budget for Unemployment Compensation from $4,000 to $4,939 an increase of $939.

Money warrant articles process:

October & November - Review all warrant articles, ask questions and deliberate - (Note: All articles
reviewed will be passed along to the Budget Committee as informational, unless otherwise noted by
Council)

December 12th - Vote to move articles to the ballot and to recommend/or not recommend.

January 9th - Address any petitioned or union negotiations warrant articles.

January 23rd - Sign official warrant and determine which Councilors will be recommending articles to
the Town Meeting on February 2nd.

RECOMMENDATION:
Motion to revise the FY 2019-20 operating budget and resubmit to the budget committee.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to amend Town Council's recommended budget by an additional $139,962 for Health and
Dental Insurance lines.

Motion to reduce Town Council's recommended budget by $3,317 for Property & Liability Insurance.
Motion to increase Town Council's recommended budget by $939 for Unemployment Compensation.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:

Page 35 of 99



Agenda Item #15.4.

FY 2019-20 Insurance changes
FY 2019-20 Warrant Articles

Page 36 of 99



Town of Hooksett

Insurance FY 2015-20 Paossible
Council FY 201%-20 Budget
GL MUMBER DESCRIFTION BUDGET Mew Premivms Adjustments
001-100.4130-210.000 ADMIM Health nsurgnce 45,0380 8,770 3,690
D01-100.4130-212.000 ADMIN Cental Insurance EE D] e 31
001-150.4152-210.000 AS5G Health nsurance 16,620 18,254 1,634
001-150,4152-212.000 A55G Pzntal insurance 336 383 12
003-200.4191-210.020 CD Hea'th Insuranre 46,6%5 17,897 1,202
001-200.4191-212.000 CD Benlal Insurancs 1,147 1,165 iy
OUL-202,4240 210,000 CEQ Heaith Insurance 8,130 9,137 LN
001-202.4240-212.000 CFQ Dental Insurance 193 198 G
001-30C.4150-210.000 FIM Fealth Insurasce n,ROB 249,653 {1,165)
001 30C.4150 212000 FI{ Certal Insuraice 036 1,158 727
001-350.4220-210.000 FD +ealth Insurarce 542,894 579,449 37002
001-350.4220-212.000 FD Dental nsura~ce 14,764 13,526 {1,228)
O01-A02,4210-210.000 FL Health Insurance 544,732 54. BRY 50,137
001-400.4210-212.000 FD Dental Insurance 14,303 13,228 [L,075)
001-453.4311-210.000 DAVW ADMIN Health Insurance 31,502 36,008 5,006
001-450,4311-212,000 D™MY ADMIN Dental Ins.rance 1,026 780 {246)
001-450,4312-210.000 RD MNT Health Insurance 139,139 145,207 “0LE8
001-150.4312-212,000 RD MNT Dental I-surance 4,114 3,295 {819]
001-450,4319-210.000 FLEET Health Insurance 43,900 45,286 5,386
001-450.4319-212.000) FLEET Dental Insurance 4840 1,536 5
DOL-451.4154-210.000 TB Health Irsurance 21,950 16,254 13,696)
NOZ-A51.4154-222.000 T8 Denta Insurance 143 380 (453)
007 -500.4321-220.00C RE&T ADMIN Health Insurance 18.242 18,254 {38)
00L-500.4321-222.C0C RET ADMIN Dental Incurance 436 159 (227
003-500,4%23-220.C0C R&T COLL Health nsurance 00,159 54,236 '5,873)
001-300.4323-212.000 R&T COLL Bental Insuranre 1864 1,536 (328}
001-300.4324-210.500 R&T Health Insurance 38209 42,8397 4.6RR
001-500.4324-212.200 R&T Dental tnsuranze 1,123 1,148 37
001-550.4150-210.000 TAX Hea th Insuiance 34,830 38,330 3,500
Q01-550.4150-212.000 | &% Dental insurance 936 967 31
001-600.4140-210.000 TC Healtn Insurance 240 240 0
401-450.4520-210.000 PER Health Tsuranze 107,027 113,170 11,148
001-450.4520-212,000 P&R Dental Insurznce Z,850 2,913 63
Librzry Health Insurance 78,714 97,945 19,235
Library Centa nsurznce 2,m7 2,871 856
1,843,169 1,983,131 143,962
Motion to antend Town Council's recommended budget by 5139,862 for Health and Dental Insurance linas as
listed above,
001-100.4196-520.000 ADMIN Liability 224,127 220,810 13,317}
Motion to reduce Town Council's recommended budget by $3,317 for Property & Liability Insurance.
4,400 4,939 939

001-100.4155-250 000

Motion to increase Town Council's recommended budget by $939 for Unemployment Compensation.

BEN Unernp.oyment Coma

Agenda ltem #15.4.

|
1
t
i
jl.

Page 37 of 99



HealthTrustss,

Medical Rate Exhibirc

Towan of Hooksetr

Rating Reacwal: fanuacy
Raring Tree: Large
Rating Tyvpe: Combined

Agenda ltem #15.4.

Entollmer Enrollee /18 1719 Yo
Current Tenefit Optiotge) Type  Counts Rates Rates Change

BCXT10( T,)—R‘I!];'25;’401\'[10;’40{'70{’3I((L:- Single 3 $O08.06 $989.79] - 2.0%
Z-Persom 3 $1,6810.13 1,979 35 - 9.0%
Family 3 $24517 $2,672 43 40"
AB2CIPDUEDOCL)-RT 0/25/400I 10, 40,707 3K Siugle 19 BIS7.03 3868 fol . Q‘OE'.
Z-Puerain 13 $1,59‘1.U5 $],73?52 v PR
Iamily 19 2,151.97 $2345.65] v 40"
ABSOSI A0/ TRDELHOIL)-R10/25 /400 - 0/40,/70/51N0E)  [single 2 bGA7. 7R 3700408 4.0%,
3-Pegson l $1.305,55 $i112.15 91105
Family 3 $1,749.00 $1,906.40 3.0%%
HREAABSOS20, 40,7 LIKOTDE1L) R10/25/7 4310/ 40/ 707 51 sirgle 12 bod7. 78 37060.08 ER
2-I"ursun p $1.295.35 $l,412.15 4.0%y
fEamily 1% $1,749. 00 B31,906.40 9.0%
TUIMTINCSZH00(01T.) Cieyle 4 077,03 $737.96 09.0%%
3-Feminn I} 51,354‘06 $1,4?5.92 Q.03
JVamily 7 $1,R27.08 $1,992 40 9.0
ACAOIT 3-R1 0/25/40M1C/40/70LCYY Ringle 3 $538.06 FaB6.4% 09.0%
MCNRXU1E) Single ] $222.13 $242 .44 9.0%
Muanthly Total LI6} $165,028.29] $179,880.66 9.0%%

Altcenative Benefit Option(s): As you consider your benelit offerings for Jamiary 1, 2019, please refer to the sampling of
Beaefit Opnon{s} provided below. It is fmpottant te note that no: all of the szmple placs listed Ielow can be offered alung

with your current Benefit Option(s). Your Benefits Advisor is availalile ro help yor select the plans that best meet yoar
Grroup’s needs and work wizhin HealthTzust’s underweiting guidelines.

Encollmer /18
Alcrnative Benelit Option{s) Type Rates

BCIT2HCIL) SREQ/ 25/ 40M 0740/ 70/ 3K Sinple $HI8.060

2 dvrson | $L,E77.31

Tamdy | 32,004.37}
ABSOSZA/ 30/ 3CDEDOLLY-R1C /25 /4001 0707 5L [Siogle 30275

2-Lerson | §1,025.50

Famdy #1.584.43%
ABED/ SR/ 2000IN(OTL) Single 350998

2lemon | B1,012.95

Famdy $1,376.93

Prepaced: Caetnber &, 20138 Trvwer oF oot

Lofl

Page 38 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Qctober 15, 201B

PROPERTY & LIABILITY PROGRAM

MEMBER CONTRIBUTION SUMMARY
JULY 1, 2019 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020 RENEWAL

NOT TO EXCEED
MEMBER: Hooksett, Town of
MEMBER NUMBER; 204
FY 2018/2019 FY 2019/2020 g
Contr'bution Assurance Program {CAF) Yes
PRIMEY Program Yes
Member Contribution $205,621 Member Contribution $220,810

Your 2018/2019 Property Values 463,535,774 :
Your 2019/202C Property Values $61,785,127
{Exposures Valued as of $/21/2018)

Change in Property -2.8%

Your 2018/2¢19 Payroll (CY 2016 Repuried) 47,610,275
Your 201972020 Payroll (CV 2017 Repoarted) $8,038,775
Chznge in Payroll 5.6%

Your 2018/2019 Loss Ratio Adjustiment Factor 1.03
Your 2019/2020 Loss Ratio Adjustment Factor 1.03
Change in Loss Ratjo Adjustment Factor 0.0%

Change from 201872019 to 2019/2020: i
Contribution Amount Change $15.189 i :
Contribution Percent Change 7.4%

Please contact the Privnex® Mcember Services Team if vou have any questions ar comments.
Invoices will be mailed around July 1, 201%.

Trust. Excellence. Service.

Bow Brook Place, 46 Donovan Street m Conco-d, NH 03361-2624
(607) 226-2841 ® (Boo) 608-2364 W nhprimexorg

Page 39 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Cclober 15, 2018
) URARPERMS AT F
MEMBER CONTRIBUTION SUMMARY
JANUARY 1, 2019 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2019 RENEWAL

MEMBER: Hooksett, Town of
MEMBER NUMBER: 204
CY 2018 CY 2019
Member Contribution $5,212 Member Contributicr 34,939

Library payrel has been merged with the 1own's poyroll for
CY2017 reporting.

Your 2018 Taxable Wages (CY 2018) $2,107,446 }
Your 2015 Taxable Wages (CY 2017) $2,147,375 |
Change in Taxable Wages 11.24% &

j You- 2017 Loss Ratio 0.00%

2 Your 2018 Loss Rat'o {through June 2018) 0.00%
Your 2018 Unemployment Rate 0.27% 5
Your 201% Unemployment Rate 0.23% |
Change from 2018 to 201%: :

Contribution Amount Change -$273 :f

: Contributicn Percent Change -5.2% ]‘

B !

Please contact the Primex® Member Services Team if you have any questians or comments.
Invoices will be mailed around January 1, 2019,

Trust. Excellence. Service.

Bow 3rook Place, 46 Lonovan Street w Corcord, Nk 03301-2624
{(6c3) 2052841 W (800) 608-2364 » nhprimexorg

Page 40 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

KT9FFI'LL 085°'8Z9°LL ¢ { sir'eeg’c) 3 S[E30]
0030l gocol PUET UCHEAIBSUC D) 4O SIUSWSATIC W] - pUn 3D
003’51 coo'sl TUBLUCCIBASQ SSNYIDSD LONESIISY § Sied - pung Y3
000°ce o00'0e Loen eAs} | - Pun 4 7
000'Ce 000°0g Juswdinbg uoRs2| 100 pRleLIoINY - pUNS YT
a00'Cs 0000 sepeJfidn sBeweiq) - pung »0
000'ss 000°5% AEAA PURLLILIOD S 4
[alalalnt:S 000’08 PUMH HS SIS2A PIOS - J13]IB) [ WIDHOE 3AT pIBA QOL
a0a°ool 000" 001 SRDIYBA SHICAA 211GNd = PUR £ 1)
ouo'ouL i 900’00 BOUBUSLIIZIY SUIpEng umal - pundg =0
| 000'0% 00N 0SS SUSIEJILNULIO:) DIpey AJusBiaw]
DOD'0Z . 000 0Z$ WASIS ang
0Co'SE 000'ced wawdinbT 2y
ususe 000'SZ$ so[uog R SH0Ed Hy
0co'0oL 000'06% woy dn cpp'po L smesedcy o114
gouose Buimurg =2
UONANGSUDD SOPUM - SUOBEAOWSY [EH UMD PI]
- UOROMISUOZ JAPU() - INCAEPUNGY IIH WONOEH WE SINY
seBes Lo -uonN
i LO)SIISUOS JApUN - I0ENUOD UGILYY AADES
LGITLISL O JOPpUN - 10BJUON Lo S04
eiszl (ose's3L's) {182'v52° L) SenusAey
18€°890°7 - LEE'D90'Z IBIEMASEAN
A6'6Z8'9L 0EGELL'D: CZEWLE LL UM
BEY PP LL 034 9C8°0L C2FE5LZL 196png Bunelsco
ounoD UILIPY UMD 15anbay weuem| &
Ag Twiwnoay Ag "wiwiooay jusunedan

{sseq xe) 2102) Z09°Z51°219°1$ 40 aseq xe) saumnssy
0Z-6102 104 S2{IIUY JHElIEAR

F1Vd XV1L NO LOVdIN A31VIAILLST YHM ITIDILUY LNVHEVM ANV 139and

12SYOoO[ fo umoy,

Page 41 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request: Date of Town Meeting: 2019

Name of Department Submitting Request: Administration

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article.

To scec if the fown will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of § for an
increase in salaries and benefits for non-union full-time and part-time Town persenrel.
Fiscal Year Salaries Benefits Total
2019-20

Estimaled tax impact is $

2. What is the intent and purpose of article?

To provide an increase in wages for 47 full-time and 34 part-time nan-union employees
including Police, Fire, Library and Town. Seasonal employges are not included.

Non-uniion Wage Increasa Salaries Benefits Total
0.50% 17,169 3,632 20,701
1.00% 34,338 7,063 41.401
1.50% 51,507 10,595 g2.102
2.00% 64,876 14,127 82 803
2.50% 86,845 17,659 103 503
3.00% 103,014 21,190 124 204
3.50% 120,182 24,722 144,904
4.00% 137,451 28,254 “64,600

Police unian —~ All steps on pay scale anticipated to increase 2.2%. Employees moves
up one step for an average of 2.5%. (19% employee share of health insurance)

3. If this article is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Coungil,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

4. Estimated cost? Estimated tax rate impact is

FINANCEFomrshiarrant Artizles Recusst Form Latest revision: Dctaher 2071

Page 42 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

5, Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

History of NoreLnion raisaes. % Noles

772018 7 0%+20 cenls
20T 20%

TR20e6 3.0% 2% Parl lime & 3% Fulldime wages & increase in Heal:h Ins
1172015 3.0%

7Hi2014 2.0%

7172013 2.0% Default
Hi2012 2.0% Default

FH2011 0.5%
172010 0.0%

71142009 2.5%

7172008 4.0%

7172007 3.8%

March 2018 Ballot passed 533 to 268 or 67% approval
March 2017 Ballot passed 344 to 169 or 67% approval
May 2016 raises were in the operating budget

INSTRUCTIONS

Al farvis stould be subiritted with the operating budget to the Town Administrator. P ease use additional steet i recessary.

Page 43 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Revised 10/16/18

Date of Request; Date of Town Meeting: 2018

Name of Department Submitting Request: Fire-Rescue & Police

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article,

Capital Reserve Funding - Fire

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $230,000.00 to be added
{o he previously established Capital Reserve I'unds and ta apportion the sum among
several funds as listed below:

Fire Apparatus $ 100,000.00
Air Packs & Botlles 25,000.00
Fire Equipment 35,000.00
Fire Cistarn 20,000.00
Emergency Radio Communications 50,00C.00

Total $ 230,00¢.00

Estimated tax rate impactis $0._ .

2. What Is the intent and purpose of article?

Fire Apparatus Reserve: There is $360,549 in the account as of September 30, 2018,
with $250 000 to be withdrawn for the new Pumper approved in March 2018 and
another $30.000 for the Forastry Truck, leaving $80,549 available to spend. Estimated
year of purchase is as needed and guided by the Vehicle Replacement Inventory. The
fund is tor the future replacement of the following fire department vehicles: all engines,
tanksrs, ladders, and forestry. This article provides fiscal stability by a fixed
replacement program for higher cost vehicles. Fire-Rescue requires a mechanically
depandable fleet to ensure the prompt servize te Hooksett residents.

Air Packs & Bottles Replacement Reserve: Total project cost is $300,000. There is
$253,181 in the account as of September 30, 2018. Estimated year of purchase is
2020, The project was established to the replacement cf all Seif-Contained Breathing
Apparatus (SCBA) when they reach 15 years of service. The existing air packs were
purchased in 2005 SCBA are critical equipment for firefighters. A single purchase date
allows for orly cne model choice which enhances familiarity by all members, equipment
exchange departmemt wide anywhere, anytime, station or scepe, reduced parts
inventory, linear inspections and service needs, all which improve employee safety,

Fire Equipment Reserve: There is $35,127 in this account as of September 30, 2018.
This fund wili allow the Fire-Rescue depariment to develop a replacement plan for these
relatively expensive items, such as, "Jaws of Life”, jacking and lifting sfruts, air bags,
Pigh angle and low angle rope rescue, and ice rescue equicment. As these ilems

FIanCEFORRsvamad Aniclas Hagueat bon Lalesl wvzien: Ceaker 235

Page 44 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

?

become unreliable the operations and efficiency of the Fire-Rescue Deparfment may
became compromised.

Fire Cistern Reserve; There is $16,033 in this account as of September 30, 2018,
This reserve saves for repairs to the fire cisterns that provide watcr in remote areas of
the Town. Water supply for fire protection may be compromised if these cisterns are not
maintained.

Emergency Radio Communigcation Reserve: There is $191,034 in the account as of
September 30, 2018, Estimated year of purchase is 2024. These funds will be used
well in the future to purchase and replace the existing emergency radic communication
system.  Our radio system was replaced in 2014 after a lightning strike caused
extensive damage. The police depariment was able to replace a major pertion of the
system with the funds that had been bullding in this capital reserve along with what the
insurance covered. We spent $383,000. The police department anticipates the system
will need replacing in ten years when the company, Motorola, no lenger supports repairs
or parts. The anticipated replacement cost is approximately $500,000, so building this
fund at $50,000 a year for ten years will help ensure the town does not have to bear the
burden of a major expense all af onee,

3. If this article is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

3. Estimated cost? 3230,000 estimated tax rate impactis $ X

5. Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

March 2018 Ballot passed Article 10 581 to 227 or 72% approval and Article 16 for Fire
Equipmen! passed 585 to 219 or 73% approval.

March 2017 Ba'lot passed 342 to 172 or 66% approval

May 2016 Ballot passed 249 to 103 or 70% approval

INSTRUCTIONS
Ali farms should be subrriticd wilh the oparaling b dget to the Town Acmiristrator. Please use additona! sheet if necessary.

Page 45 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request; ' Date of Town Meeting: 2019
Name of Department Submitting Request: DPW — Highway Division

1. Please provids the wording of the proposed article.

Capitat Reserve Funding - DPW
Te see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $100,000.00 ic be added
to Town Building Maintenance Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated

tax rate impactis 50

2. What is the intent and purpose of article?

Town Building Maintenance Reserve: Total project cost is ongoing. There is
$200,725 in the account as of September 30, 2018, Estimated year of purchase is as
needed. This fund addresses the needs of town buildings. Over the past year we
utiizel this fund for lighting and ventilation upgrades to the highway building; partial roof
at the town hall and the elevater repairs at the Library. It is imperative that the town
keep a minimum of $250,000 in this fund so that there are funds for any major repairs
that will need to be addressed in the future. We have $26,000 000 worth of buildings to
maintain within the town. The Public Works Director believes a $250,000 minimum in
this account is not an unreasonable request.

3. If this article is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

4. Estimated cost? $100,000; estimated tax rate impact is $

5. Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

March 2018 Ballot passed 436 to 368 or 54% approval
March 2017 Ballot passed 307 to 206 or 59% approval {groupad wIh F&R Facilities Davelopment}

INSTRUCTIONS

All forms snould be sstbmitied with the oparaling budgel to the Town Administ-ator. Please usc additionel sheet if necessary

FINANT E/Formsfarrant Arlicles Reques: Fomm Lates| revision Cctobar 2011

Page 46 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request: Date of Town Meeting: 2013
Name of Department Submitting Request: DPW- Highway Division

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article.

Capita} Reserve Funding -~ DPW Vehicles

To see if the town will vote to raise anc apprapriate the sum of $180,000.00 ¢ ke added
to the Public Works' Vehicles Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Lstimated
tax rate impact is S0.

2. What is the intent and purpose of article?

To purchase vehicles for plowing and road maintenance, including equipment to replace
an aging fleet and to reduce the cost ¢f vehicle maintenance. There is $184,155 in the
account as of September 30, 2018. The reserve fund allows for the Town to replace
and add veh'cles when neaded. This fund evens the burden on tax payers by planning
for the purchase. The town is continuing to grow and we will need to address that

growth,

3. If this article is hot passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

If this article is not passed at Town Meeting, the aging fleet will cost more far vehicles
maintenance, for a temporary fix. [t may, if vehicles are deemed not inspectable, slow
down the plowing efforts on Town roads.

The lollowing purchases have been made from this reserve.
2015 Bobcat 5570

2015 Ford F550

2016 Mack Truck

2016 Bobcat 18" Planer

2016 Ford +550

2017 International 7400

2017 Ford F350

2018 International 7400

FINAMC C/FarmsWarrant Articles Raquest Fam Latest rovision Cctober 2011

Page 47 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

4. Estimated cost? $100,000; estimated tax rate impactis $__
5. Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

3
March 2018 Ballot passed 429 ta 423 or 50% approval *
March 2017 Ballot passed 309 to 178 or 63% approval
May 2016 Ballot passed 207 to 135 or 80% approval

INSTRUCTIONS
A | forms shauld be submilted with the operating budgsd 1o the Town Administrator  Please use additiznal sheat F necaszary.

Page 48 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request: September 28, 2018 Date of Town Meeting: 2019
Name of Department Submitting Request: Department of Public Works

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article,

To see if the town wi'l vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $80,000.00 to purchase
a 100 yard live bottom floor railer for the Recycling and Transfer Divisian of Public
Works with said funds to come from the Solid Waste Disposal Special Revenue Fund?
No amount to be raised from faxation,

2. What is the intent and purpose of article?

As cf Septerrber 30, 2018 the Solid Waste Disposal Fund had a balance of $470,025,
with $65,000 to be withdrawn for a new scale system approved in March 2018. This
reguest is to purchase a 100 yard live bottomn trailer to haul trash generated in the Town
of Hooksstt to approved site. This trailer will replace a 2004 {railer that has a damaged
floor and is presently used for hau'ing metal. The SWW-T3 2004 trailer will be traded in

see gitached.

3. If this article is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

We wiil soon need to haul the metal in a trailer that is in hetter shane, which could
cause damage.

4. Estimated cost? $80,000 from the Solid Waste Disposal Special Revenue Fund.

5, Is any further information necessary far the deliberation?

INSTRUCTIONS
Al forer s should be submitted with the operating cudget to the Tow Administralor. Plaage Lee addiional sheet if nacessary,

FINANCE/FormsAvarrant Articles Requsst Form Latest revision: October 201°

Page 49 of 99



SWT3 2004 5tan 108 Yard Live Bottom {railer

Purpose: Recycle & Transler

VIN i IS9WS452 X451 RRGTT

Plate: 08304

Purchase I'rice: $43,280.00

Mileage: N/A

Condition: i —

Maintenance ITistory
FY 2013-16: $0.C0
FY 2016-17: $543.39
FY 2017-1%: $0.00

Agenda ltem #15.4.

93

H
H
L

Page 50 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request: August 1, 2018 Date of Town Meeting: 2019
Name of Department Submitting Request: Fire-Rescue

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article.

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $65,000.00 fc purchase i
a vehicle for the Fire-Rescue Department. Estimated tax rate impactis $0.__.

2. What is the intent and purpose of article? z

The purpose of this article is to rep'ace Car 5 a 2003 Ford Expedition with over 115,000
miles. This vehicle has extensive corrosion and requires excessive mairtenarnce.

3. M this article is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Coungcil,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

This vehicle will be used daily by the Fire-Rescue Department to accompish our
m'ssion of Emergency Response, Fire Prevention and Emergency Preparedness.

4, Estimated cost? $55,000: estimated tax rate impaciis 3__

5. |Is_any further information necessary for the deliberation?

The vehicle is scheduled for replacement in the 2019-2020 CIP Program.

INSTRUCTIONS
Al fanms should e suomitled with the operating budget to the Town Adminisiratcr. Flaase use additional sheet if

necessary,

FINANC ZfFormefvarrant Articles Reguest Form Latesl revisior: Qclober 2011

Page 51 of 99



Purpose:

VIN #;

Plate:

Male:

Year Purchased:
Purchase Price;

Estimated Replacement Price:

Mileage:
Condition:

Maintenanee History
FY 2015-16:
FY 2016-17:
FY 2017-18:

Notes:

Transferred from Polics Department in 2007, Extensive body rot on the uncerside of the
body and frame. Failed State spection. Town Mechanic recommended not making repairs and

was removed fiom service.

Car-5

Fire Administration/Command Vehicle
IFMPUIGT 141378557

G14:00

Ford Expedilion

2004

$36,500.00 (Vehicle only, not up fitted)
$63,000.00 (Up fitled vehicle)

115,347

008 - Faled [nspection

$1,501.33
3 67717
§ 146.00

Agenda ltem #15.4.

Page 52 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request; ' Date of Town WMeeting: 2019
Name of Department Submitting Request: DPW — Highway Division

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article,

Capital Reserve Funding - DPW
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $50,000.00 to be added
to the Drainaye Upgrades Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax

rate impact is $

2. What s the intent and purpose of article?

Drainage Upgrade Reserve: Total project cost is ongoing. There is $281,842 in the
account as of September 30, 2018. Estimated year of purchase is as needed. Various
areas throughout town have drainage that has begun o detericrate and fail. These
failures are due to aging pipes, pipes that have outlived their expected lifespan,
increased storm runoff due to growth in town, and more storms with & higher volume of
water. These pipes were not installed to handle the amount of walter that they are taking
on. This fund is for updating the drainage to larger pipes, which will handle both the
increased volume of water and anticipatec growth.

3. If this articls is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

Drainage projects that these funds have been used for are as follows:
2015 Sherwood Drive

2016 Grant Drive

2018 Morgan Drive

2018 Smyth Road & Route 28

4. Estimated cost? $50,000; estimated tax rate impactis $0___

5. Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

March 2018 Ballot failed 349 to 448
March 2017 Baliot passed 301 to 218 or 57% approval
May 2016 Ballot passed 211 to 138 or 60% appraval

INSTRUCTIONS
Al fonns should be sulinitizd with tha operating budget to the Town Administeator. Please use additionat sheet i necessary.

FINANCEFForrrs;Warranl Articies Regquest Form |.atast revision: Ockaber 2011

Page 53 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request; ' Date of Town Meeting: 2019
Name of Department Submitting Request: DPW — Recycling & Trans’er Division

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article.

Capital Reserve Funding — Automated Collection Equipment

To see if the town will vote to raise ard approgriate the sum of $38,000.00 to be added
to the Automated Collection Eguipment Capital Reserve previously established.
Estimated tax rate impactis 3

2. What is the intent and purpose of article?

Automated Collection Equipment Reserve: Original project cost was $840,000.
There is $145,622 in the account as of September 30, 2018. Estimated year of
purchase is 2022. The fund is to prepare for the future replacement of the
trashfrecycling coliection vehicles and barrels. Funds will be used to ofiset future costs

of replacement.

3. |f this article is not passed at Town Meeting or appreved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

4. Estimated cost? $30,000: estimated tax rate impactis $

5. Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

March 2018 Ballot passed 446G to 336 or 58% approval
March 2017 Ballot passed 331 to 187 or 63% approval
May 2016 Baliot passed 211 to 138 or 60% apprcval

INSTRUCTICNS
A | forms should be submitted with the operating basdgat to the Town Administrator Please use addiional sheet il necessary.

FINANCE/FormsMarrant Alclos Raquest Form Latzst rovision: Octcher 2071

Page 54 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request: Date of Town Meeting: 2019

Name of Department Submitting Request:

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article.

Capital Reserve Funding - Revaluation
To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriate the sum of $30,000.00 to be added
to Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund previously established. Estimated tax rate impact

2. What is the intent and purpose of article?

Revaluation Reserve: There is $54,223 in account as of September 30, 2018 with the
remainder of the funds to be withdrawn in late 2018 for the 2018 Revaluation. This
project is to set aside funds for the next update in 2023. The 2018 revaluation cost was
$161,231, the cost for 2013 is $137.300, and the estimated cost in 2018 is $149,703.
Every five years the Town is required to reappraise ali property values for assessment
equity property tax purposes per NH State Constitution Article 6.

3. |f this article is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

4, Estimated cost $30,000; estimated tax rate impactis $____

5, |s any further information necessary for the deliberation?

INSTRUCTIONS
All*orms s1ould be submilted wit1 the oparatiag budget to the Town Administ-ator. Please use adzitional shueel # necessary

FiINAMC EfSormsWarran: Artictes Reques: Form Latos! rovision: Gotober 2011

Page 55 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Revised 12/28/17

Date of Request: ) Date of Town Meeting: 2019
Name of Department Submitting Reguest: DPW — Highway Division

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article.

Capital Reserve Funding - DPW

To see if the town will vote to raise and appropriaie the sum of $15,000.00 to be added
to Parks & Recrealion Faciliies Development Capital Reserve Fund previously
established. Estimated tax rate impactis $0_____

2, What is the intent and purpose of article?

Parks and Recreation Facilities Development Reserve: Tatal project cost is
ongoing. There is $127,922 in the account as of Seplember 30, 2018. Estimated year
of purchase is as needed, The town continues to grow and we are forced to deal with
aging structures, huilding updates, and additional recreation areas that will need to be
addressad. We have put together a listing of items that will need to be addressed within
the next five years. Since addressing the lighting at Donati, our next project will be
buiding updates on the Parks & Rec building. The Parks & Rec Division has outgrown
the building and needs more space to work out of and store the equipment they use
daily. This building has not been updated in over 15 years while the division has grown.
In 2018 bids in the ranging from $326,000 to $367 000 received for the design bLild of
the maintenance building additions.

3. If this article is not passed at Town Meeting or approved by the Town Cauncil,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

4. Estimated cost? $15,000; estimated tax rate impactis §___

5. Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

March 2018 Ballot passcd 540 te 272 or 67% approval
March 2017 Ballot passed 307 fo 206 or 59% approval (grouped with Town Building Maintenance)

INSTRUCTIONS
A 1forms should be submitled with the upesaling budget 1o the Town Administralor. Please use additional sneat if necessary.

FINANCEFormsWarran: Aticles Requast Form Latzst revision: Octcher 2011

Page 56 of 99



Agenda ltem #15.4.

Town of Hooksett
WARRANT ARTICLE REQUEST FORM

Date of Request: Date of Town Meeting: 2019
Name of Department Submitting Request: Conservation

1. Please provide the wording of the proposed article.

Capital Reserve Funding - Conservation
To see if the town will vote to raige and appropriate the sum of $10,000.00 to be added
to the Conservation Land Improvements Capital Reserve Fund previously established.

Estimated fax rate impact is $3___

2, What is the intent and purpose of article?

Improvements of Town-Owned Conservation Land Reserve: There is $30,683 in the
account as of September 30, 2018. The fund is to begin to plan for improvements and
developments that may be needed for all of the conservation lands/easements currently
held by the Town. Over the past few years, the Commission has cantinued its pursuit of
acquiring land to conserve for future residents fo enjoy, consistent with the mandates of
the Master Plan. The conservation easements, pertaining to such property, require the
Town tc maintain the property and make repairs or improvements as necessary. In
order to meet this lzgal obligation, it is necessary for us to create a capital reserve fund
toe ensure that the Town will be prepared for any planned or unexpected maintenarce
issues that may arise. The stewardship of the Town's Conservation properties includes
the requirement of maintaining existing trails and the right to develop new trails.

'3, If this article is not passed at Town Meetind or approved by the Town Council,
what affect would this have on your department goals and programs?

4, Estimated cost? $10,000 this fiscal year; Estimated tax rate impact is $___

5. Is any further information necessary for the deliberation?

March 2018 Ballot passed 464 to 315 or 0% approval
March 2017 Ballot passed 392 to 122 or 82% approval

INSTRUCTICNS
AN forrrs shoukt be subitted with the operating Tudget €2 T Town Administrator. Please use addiional sheet if nacessary.

FINANGE!FormeWarrant Articles Reguest Form Latest “afsion Jctobar 2019

Page 57 of 99



Page 58 of 99



Agenda Item #16.1.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Use of Unassigned Fund Balance to lower 2018 Tax Rate
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Finance
Staff Contact: Christine Soucie, Finance Director

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The Town anticipates setting the 2018 tax rate in the middle of November.

As of June 30, the Unassigned Fund Balance was $3,367,636 or 6.08%. The Town's policy is to
maintain a minimum of 5% of Unassigned Fund Balance and to work towards maintaining 8% to
protect the Town against emergencies and economic downturns.

The net appropriations(tax dollars) for 2018 is $44,614,572.00, this is $1,546,871.00 or 3.59% more
than the total tax dollars needed for 2017.

Attached you will find a history of the Unassigned General Fund Balance and additional information
about the impact of using Unassigned Fund Balance to reduce the amount tax dollars needed to be
collected.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

If no Unassigned Fund Balance was applied to the 2018 taxes, the annual tax bill for a single family
home valued at $231,000 would increase an estimated $221.75.

RECOMMENDATION:

I recommend using $300,000 of Unassigned Fund Balance to reduce the amount of taxes that need
to be collected. This would retain $3,067,636 or 5.54% which is just above last years 5.2%. At the
same time, it will reduce the amount of taxes that needs to be collected on the single family home
valued at $231,000 from an estimated $221.75 to $179.13 for the year.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Motion to apply $300,000 of Unassigned Fund Balance to reduce the 2018 net appropriations.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:

| concur that applying some portion of the Unassigned Fund Balance to reduce the overall tax liability
is prudent but | would caution us not to emphasize the exact percentages or dollar figure impacts to
individual properties because both the overall tax rate and the amount to be assessed to each
property will be impacted by the revaluation.

Page 59 of 99



Agenda Item #16.1.

ATTACHMENTS:
Unassigned General Fund Balance History

Page 60 of 99



Town of Hooksett

Unassigned General Fund Balance History

Agenda Item #16.1.

Used to
Beginning *Current year Warrant Reduce Ending % of FB
Year Balance increase Articles Tax Rate Balance Retained

200C 1,200,000 1,022 779 (€0,000) {1,302,779) £60,000 -

2001 860,000 1,195 €05 - {1,3556,6805) 500,000 1.85%
2002 500,000 1,550 437 137.000) {1,050,431) 963,000 3.20%
2003 #63,000 1,794 B30 122 980) {1,334,850) 1,400,200 5.00%
2004 1,400,000 1,775 797 - (1,649,330) 1,626,497 5.00%,
2005 1,526,449/ 1,504 609 - {1,6C0,030) 1,431,108 3.80%
2006 1,431,108 1,863,542 {500,000) {1,350,000) 1,444,648 2.65%
2007 1,414,548 1,785,347 - {1,5C0,000) 1,729,805 4.90%
2008 1,729,295 1,867,302 - {1,5C0,000) 2,097 297 5.18%
2009 2,097 297 295,371 {134,000} {875,000} 1,223,668 2.80%
2010 1,323,568 203,789 - {300,000} 1,227,457 317%
20114 1,227 457 802,877 - {260,000} 1,773,434 4.41%
2012 1,770,434 666,248 - - 2436682 6.00%,
2013 2,436 682 733,354 - - 3,170 C38 7.87%
2014 3107 038 1,348,547 - (¥67,363) 3,588 220 B.00%
2015 3,688 220 1,675,465 - {1,647 514) 3.615 871 B8.00%
2016 36187 1,326,418 - {200,200} 4. 441,289 9.34%
2017 4,441 289 1,384,377 {2,160,817) {1,C00,200} 2,664,749 5.20%
2018 2,664 749 702,887 - 3,367,636 6.C8%

* Current year ingrease are frem actual revenues tigher than estimated and expense lower than budgeted

and changes ir overlay.

a - Warrant articte #18 Transfer Stalion Front-End Loader Fund.

b ~ Wa-rant article #13 Emegency Radio Communicatior System.

¢ - Warrant articie #32 Police Computer Develnopment Fund.
d - Warrant article #20 Renovation of Former Vil'age Schook.
& - Wairant article #58 & 9 [own Building maintenance ($130,000} and Martin Ferry Wall Repairs (864,000},

f - Warrant article #8 Visionary Plan for Sswer and Otner Infrastructure Imprevements (§100,000) and
Errergency aparopriation for Lilac Bridge ($2,063,917}

DRA's Gufdance as stated on Surplus Retention form.

"Respensible fong term financial planning requires an adequate level of general fund unreserved fund balance
to mitigate future risks end 10 ensure stacie tax rates. The GFOA suggests mun cipalities retain between 8%
and 17% of regular gereral “und operaling revenuss or no less than 2 months of general fl.nd operating
expenditures. In NM, this is celculated by adding the munkipality's general fund operating appropriations, the
state education tax amouns, the logal school net tax commitment, and the colinty appropriations Based on
our best available information, the suggestead levels for yeur municipality for 2018 would be:

5% §2.769 880 B% 34,431,777 10% $5,639,721 1% $9.41/.526

FINANCE\DRA FormsiFund Balance history

Page 61 of 99



Agenda Item #16.1.

TOWN OF HOOKSETT
Use of Fund Balance to lower {ax rale 101218
[For Analysis Use Only |
2017 2018 Change %
Net Met in Net Estimated
Appropriations Appropriations Appropriations Change
Municipal Tax Rale 11,026,948 12,002 935 975938.00
School Tax Fate 22,354,979 2%2,835,508 481,520.00
State School fax Rale 4,149,940 4,092.1°9 {57,821.00}
County Tax Rale 5,535,834 5,683,008 147,174.00
Total Net Appropriations  43,067,701.00 44,614,572.00 1,646,871.00 3.59%
History of Assessed Value, Tax Rate and % of Fung Balance Retained
Assessed Total Fund Balance
Year Value Tax Rate Retainad
2018
2017 1.617,152,602 28.74 5.20%
2018 1.597,977,330 26.39 9.34%
2015 1 583,367,301 24.72 8.00%
2014 1 573,447,531 24.83 8.00%
2013 1.556,298 €43 2345 7.87%
2012 1.627,781,682 22.32 6.00%
2011 1,629,349 475 2168 4.41%
2010 1,624,958,734 2168 3.12%
2009 1,614,242 §2° 21.18 2.80%
2008 1,595,105 €65 2082 518%
2007 1,322 460 143 22.68 4 S0%
2003 1274733978 22.68 2 E5%
Estimated Effects of Unassigned Fund Balance Used to Reduce Tax Rate
Fund Balance Increase In
used to reduce Fund Balance % Change in Annual Tax
Options tax rate Retained Net Appropriations Bill *
A - 6.08% 3.68% $221.75
B 300,000 0.54% 2.9% $179.13
c 600,000 5.00% 2.2% $135.89

* Increased based on single family horme valued at $231,000

Page 62 of 99



Agenda Item #16.2.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town council
Title: Discussion regarding HFR Ladder Truck 1
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Fire and Rescue
Staff Contact: James Burkush, Chief of Hooksett Fire&Rescue

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Ladder 1 Out of Service due to severe rust on frame and torque box. Repairs estimated by
manufacturer at $160,000.00. Have contacted the Town Attorney to send letter for warranty service.
At this time would like to advise Town Council. Thank you

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
TBD

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
| believe it is reasonable to wait until the warranty issue can be resolved.

ATTACHMENTS:
18FES31299 - KMEAL - 09-27-2018 - Hooksett FD - Hooksett NH - Aerial Inspection Report

Page 63 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

09/ 27/ 18

Town O Hooksett

Assi stant Chi ef Dean Jore
15 Legends Dr

Hooksett, NH 03106

Qur Reference: 18FES31299

Subj ect: Aerial Exam nation; 2003 KME Fire Apparatus 75 ft. Steel
Aerial Ladder, dient Vehicle No. - Truck 1

Dear Assi stant Chi ef Dean Jore:

The examinations and tests of the subject aerial device covered
under our Reference No. 18FES31299 were conducted on 09/27/18. The
test program was conducted in accordance with the applicable

provi sions of Chapter 22 of the National Fire Protection Association
(NFPA) Standard No. 1911, *“Standard for the I nspection, Mintenance,
Testing, and Retirenment of In-Service Energency Vehicles,” current
Edi ti on.

The encl osed Report outlines the tests conducted, the nethods used,
and the results of such tests. The Concl usi on Page of the Report
summari zes the areas of nonconpliance found during the inspection of
your aerial device.

Al t hough a certificate of conpliance is not required by NFPA 1911
this service is provided by UL. If you wish to receive a
certificate of conpliance please contact UL custoner service at 877-
854- 3577, pronpt 2, to schedule a reinspection after the itens of
nonconpl i ance have been repaired. During the reinspection we wll
verify that all nonconpliant itens found during our origina

i nvestigati on have been repaired. Upon successful conpletion of the
rei nspection, we will issue a Certificate stating the unit’s
conpliance with Chapter 22 of NFPA 1911, current Edition.

If you should have any questions or comments concerning this
i nvestigation, please do not hesitate to contact UL

Very Truly Yours,

Brian Lawton

Bri an Lawt on
Fire Equi pnrent Services
Phone No. (877)UL-HELPS (Option 2)

ULLLC
333 Pfingsten Road, Northbrook, IL 60062-2096 USA
T:847.272.8800 / F: 847.272.8129 / W: UL.com

Page 64 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

FI RE EQUI PMENT SERVI CES

09/ 27/ 18

REPORT
On

St eel Aerial Ladder

Town O Hooksett
Hooksett, NH 03106

Copyright © 2018 UL LLC
UL aut hori zes the above naned conpany to reproduce this Report
provided it is reproduced in its entirety.

Page 65 of 99



Project: 18FES31299 Page 1 of 19

PRODUCT COVERED:

Cient - Town O Hooksett
Tel ephone - 603. 623. 7272

Address - 15 Legends Dr
City - Hooksett

State - NH

Zip - 03106

Client Vehicle No. - Truck 1

Test Date - 09/27/18

| nspection Type - Annual w th NDT

Unit Mr. - KME Fire Apparatus

Model - Aerial Cat 75; Serial No. - 5249

Year - 2003

Chassi s Manufacturer - KME Fire Apparatus
Vehicle Identification No. (VIN - 1K9AF648X3N058654
Aerial Manufacturer - KME Fire Apparatus
Ladder Type and Material - Steel Aerial Ladder
Maxi mrum Recommended Extended Length - 75 ft.
No. of Sections - 3

M | eage - 46, 224

Engi ne Hours - 5, 563

Exam nati on and Tests by - Brian Lawton

Agenda ltem #16.2.

Page 66 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Project: 18FES31299 Page 2 of 19

PURPOSE AND SCCPE:

The sol e purpose of this exam nation and test is to determ ne that the
aerial device identified in the Agreenent conforns to the applicable
provi sions of Chapter 22 of the National Fire Protection Association
(NFPA) Standard No. 1911, Standard for the Inspection, M ntenance,
Testing, and Retirenent of |n-Service Emergency Vehicles, current

Edi tion.

RESULTS:

A detail ed Report containing results of examination and tests required
by Chapter 22 of NFPA 1911 follows. Test methods are outlined in
Chapter 22 of NFPA Standard 1911 and the UL Fire Department Aerial
Devi ce Exami nation and Test Specifications.

Results of each test are to be considered in conpliance with the
St andard unl ess coment is made to the contrary. A sunmmary of
nonconpliant results is provided in the conclusion of this Report.

LIMTATION OF LIABILITY:

By the issuance and receipt of this report, the dient agrees that UL
in performng its inspection does not undertake to di scharge any
responsibility of the Client to any other party. UL nakes no
representations or warranties of any kind, express or inplied, with
respect to its services. UL's findings represent its judgment given
wi th due consideration to the necessary limtations of practical
operation and the Client agrees that UL does not warrant or guarantee
that its findings will be recognized or accepted. The dient agrees
that UL is not an insurer and assumes no liability which mght result
directly or indirectly fromthe inspection of the aerial device,
failure of the aerial device, or that the aerial device will in all
cases operate as intended except to the extent such liability results
fromthe sole negligence of UL in exanm ning and testing the aeri al
device identified in this report.

Page 67 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 3 of 19

TEST RECORD NQ 1

Tur nt abl e Exam nati on and Test

UPPER ROTATI ON BEARI NG MOUNTI NG BOLTS:

Upper bearing bolts were identified by the UL Field
representative as 3/4 in., Grade 8, with a torque specification
of 370 ft-Ib.

Nunber of bolt(s)less than the specified torque: None

Nunber of bolt(s) inaccessible to torque verification: Ten

U trasonic inspection of the upper rotation bearing bolts
reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

All bolts were present.

LOAER ROTATI ON BEARI NG MOUNTI NG BOLTS

Lower rotation bearing bolts were identified by the UL Field
Representative as 3/4 in., Gade 8, with a torque specification
of 370 ft-Ib.

Nurmber of bolt(s) |less than the specified torque: None

Nurmber of bolt(s) inaccessible to torque verification: None

U trasonic inspection of the lower rotation bearing bolts
reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

Al bolts were present.

TORQUE BOX MOUNTI NG TO FRAME:

Torque box to frame nmounting bolts were identified by the UL
Field Representative as 3/4 in., Gade 8 wth a torque
speci fication of 370 ft-1b.

Nunber of bolt(s) less than the specified torque: None
Nunber of bolt(s) inaccessible to torque verification: Three

U trasonic inspection of the torque box to frame nounting bolts
reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

All bolts were present.

Page 68 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Project: 18FES31299 Page 4 of 19

TORQUE BOX:

I nspection of all accessible torque box structural wel dnments was
conducted. No defects were found.

Del ani nating corrosion was detected on the bottom side of the
torque box, between the mainframe rails. These results are
nonconpl i ant.

ROTATI ON GEAR AND BEARI NG

The rotation gear was found to contain no damaged or m ssing
t eet h.

The pinion and gear were properly aligned.
The gear assenbly was properly lubricated
The bearing assenbly was properly |ubricated.

The rotation gear train was inspected for backlash by el evating
the aerial, engaging the rotation lock, if applicable, and
manual |y pushing and pulling the aerial back and forth. Backl ash
in the gear was then detected by observing novenent of the
turntable in relation to a stationary point on the unit torque
box.

Backl ash was recorded at 0.125 in. at the edge of the turntable.

Rot ati on bearing cl earance was neasured by recording a dia

i ndi cator reading on the circunference of the rotation bearing.
The aerial boom assenbly was rotated so that the center |ine of
the boomwas aligned with the dial indicator position. The base
of the dial indicator was nounted to one race of the bearing and
the indicator point was placed on the other race of the bearing.
The boom was el evated, fully retracted, and stopped at various
angles as it approached full elevation. Bearing clearance was
then deternined by reading the dial indicator.

The cl earance neasurenents were recorded. Position 1 is | ocated
at the front of the turntable. Each subsequent position is in a
cl ockwi se direction fromPosition 1 at 45° intervals.

Vertical C earance

Position 5 - Cearance 0.013 in.
The maxi mum vertical bearing clearance was recorded at 0.013 in.

ROTATI ON GEAR REDUCTI ON BOX MOUNTI NG

Rot ation gear reduction box nmounting bolts were identified by the
UL Field Representative as 3/4 in., Grade 8, with a torque
speci fication of 370 ft-1b.

Page 69 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 5 of 19

Nurmber of bolt(s) inaccessible to torque verification: Al

U trasonic inspection of the rotation gear reduction box nounting
bolts was not possible due to inaccessibility of the bolts.

Al bolts were present.

I nspection of the rotation gear reduction box nmounting wel dnents
was conducted. No defects were found.

TURNTABLE STRUCTURAL COVPONENTS:

I nspection of the turntable structural wel dnments was conduct ed.
No defects were found.

ROTATI ON HYDRAULI C SW VEL:

No hydraulic fluid | eakage was det ect ed.
The rotation hydraulic swivel was securely nounted.

HYDRAULI C LI NES AND HOSES | N CHASSI S AND TORQUE BOX:

Al hydraulic lines, valves, fittings and other conmponents were
undanaged.

All hydraulic |ines exhibited no signs of hydraulic fluid
| eakage.

HYDRAULI C LI NES AND HOSES | N TURNTABLE:

Al hydraulic lines, valves, fittings and other conmponents were
undanaged.

Al'l hydraulic |ines exhibited no signs of hydraulic fluid
| eakage.

HYDRAULI C PUMP

The hydraulic punp showed no signs of external hydraulic fluid
| eakage.

AUXI LI ARY HYDRAULI C PONER:

The auxiliary power operated properly.

ELEVATI ON CYLI NDER ANCHOR EARS AND PLATES:

I nspection of the elevation cylinder anchor ear nounting plate
wel dnents was conducted. No defects were found.

Page 70 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 6 of 19

COLLECTOR RI NGS

The collector rings were inaccessible to visual inspection.
All terminals and wiring were undamaged and properly connect ed.

The collector rings operated correctly while the electric powered
devi ces were operating.

The noisture indicators were not provided or were inaccessible.

ELEVATI ON CYLI NDER PI NS

All cylinder pins were properly aligned.

The el evation cylinder pins were properly install ed.
The el evation cylinder pins were properly |ubricated.
The el evation cylinder pins were operating properly.
The el evation cylinder pins were properly retained.

U trasonic inspection of the elevation cylinder pins reveal ed no
detectable internal flaws.

ELEVATI ON CYLI NDER( S) :

The el evation cylinder rod(s) were undamaged.
The rod to barrel seal (s) did not |eak hydraulic fluid.

The el evation cylinder(s) was/were then subjected to a drift
test. The aerial was properly leveled, elevated to 60°, fully
extended, and the fly locks, if any, engaged. The hydraulic
cylinder lock valve, if any, was closed tightly and di al

i ndicators attached to the cylinder rods. The aerial was all owed
to stand with the notor shut off for 1 hr. Any cylinder drift
can be determ ned by reading the dial indicator.

The left elevation cylinder drift was recorded at 0.033 in. in 1
hour .

The right elevation cylinder drift was recorded at 0.037 in. in 1
hour .

HOLDI NG VALVES ON ELEVATI ON CYLI NDER(S) :

The hol di ng val ve(s) on the cylinders showed no signs of externa
hydraulic fluid | eakage.

Page 71 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Project: 18FES31299 Page 7 of 19

EXTENSI ON CYLI NDER ANCHOR EARS AND PLATES

Ext ensi on cyl i nder anchor ears and pl ates nounting bolts were
identified by the UL Field Representative as 1/2 in., G ade 8,
with a torque specification of 120 ft-Ib.

Nurmber of bolt(s) |ess than the specified torque: None

Nurmber of bolt(s) inaccessible to torque verification: None

U trasonic inspection of the extension cylinder anchor ears and
pl ates nounting bolts reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

Al bolts were present.

I nspection of the extension cylinder anchor ear nounting plate
wel dnents was conducted. No defects were found.

EXTENSI ON CYLI NDER PI NS

The extension cylinder pins were properly install ed.
The extension cylinder pins were properly retained.

U trasonic inspection of all accessible extension cylinder pins
reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

EXTENSI ON CYLI NDER( S) :

The cylinder rod(s) was inaccessible to visual inspection.
The rod to barrel seal (s) was inaccessible to visual inspection.

The extension cylinders were then subjected to the drift test.
The aerial device was properly leveled, fully el evated and
extended 10 ft. A dial indicator was attached to the base
section with the point against the second section. The aerial
device was allowed to stand with the notor shut off for 1 hr
Cylinder drift was then determnmi ned by reading the dial indicator.

The left extension cylinder drift was recorded at 0.025 in. in 1
hour .

The right extension cylinder drift was recorded at 0.021 in. in 1
hour .

HOLDI NG VALVES ON EXTENSI ON CYLI NDERS

The hol di ng val ves on all cylinders showed no signs of externa
hydraulic fluid | eakage.

Page 72 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 8 of 19

LADDER HI NGE PI N

The | adder to turntable hinge pin was properly aligned.
The | adder hinge pins were properly installed.

The | adder hinge pins were properly |lubricated.

The | adder hinge pins were operating properly.

The | adder hinge pins were properly retained.

U trasonic inspection of the ladder to turntable hinge pin
reveal ed no internal flaws.

OPERATI NG CONTROLS:

The operating controls were undamaged.
The operating controls operated properly.

Al functions were identified, operating instructions and
war ni ngs wer e posted.

The operating controls exhibited no signs of external hydraulic
fluid | eakage.

HYDRAULI C O L:

Fol | owi ng operation of the aerial device, a sanple of the
hydraulic fluid was collected fromthe hydraulic reservoir. The
sanpl e was provided to the custoner to be sent to an analytica

| aboratory for spectro-chem cal analysis, particle count,

vi scosity check, and water content anal ysis.

LOAD LIMT | NDI CATORS

The load Iimt indicator placard was accurate.

TURNTABLE ALI GNVENT | NDI CATOR

The turntabl e alignnent indicator was present on the unit and
accurate.

The cradl e alignment indicating sensor |ight was operating
correctly.

THROTTLE CONTROL:

The throttle control operated properly.

The engi ne operating speed was recorded at 1,400 r/mn.

Page 73 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 9 of 19

COVMUNI CATI ON SYSTEM

The conmuni cati on system conponents were properly install ed.
The conmuni cati on system operated properly.

RELI EF HYDRAULI C PRESSURE

Main punp relief pressure was recorded at 2750 psig.

This neets the manufacturer’s recommended relief pressure
setting.

UNI T MAIN FRAMVE

I nspection of the unit nmain frame wel dnents was conducted. The
followi ng defects were found. These results are nonconpliant.

Del am nating corrosion |l ocated on the left and right side.
Def ormed Crossnenber |ocated on the left and right side.

UNIT MAIN FRAVE SUSPENSI ON

Unit main frane suspension nounting bolts were identified by the
UL Field Representative as 5/8 and 3/4 in., Grade 8, wench-
tight.

Nunber of bolt(s) inaccessible to torque verification: None
Nurmber of bolt(s) less than the specified torque: None

U trasonic inspection of the unit main frame suspensi on nounting
bolts reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

All bolts were present.

I nspection of unit nain frame wel dements was conducted. No
defects were found.

TRANSM SSI OV AERI AL | NTERLOCKS

The vehicle was provided with a transm ssion/aerial interlock.
The stabilizers did not depl oy.
The aerial device did not elevate fromthe bedded position.

ENG NE SPEED | NTERLCCK:

The vehicle was provided with an engi ne speed interl ock.

Wth the vehicle in travel node, the engine high idle did not
engage.

Page 74 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 10 of 19

BREATHI NG Al R SYSTEM

The unit was not equipped with a breathing air system

WARNI NG DEVI CES:

The stabilizer warning device operated properly.

ROTATI ON | NTERLOCK

The rotation interlock operated properly.

WARNI NG SI GNS

All signs that were in place were legible at the time of
i nspecti on.

PONER TAKEOFF

The power takeoff showed no signs of external hydraulic fluid
| eakage.

The power takeoff engaged properly.

Stabilizer Exami nation and Test

STABI LI ZER STRUCTURAL COVPONENTS

I nspection of the stabilizer structural conponent wel dnents was
conducted. The followi ng defects were found. These results are
nonconpl i ant.

Cracked weld, left front stabilizer, where the stiffening
gusset neets the horizontal stabilizer housing.

Cracked weld, right front stabilizer, where the stiffening
gusset neets the horizontal stabilizer housing.

STABI LI ZER PLATES:

Stabilizer plates were present and of proper construction.

STABI LI ZER MOUNTI NG TO TORQUE BOX:

I nspection of the stabilizer nounting to torque box wel dnments was
conducted. No defects were found.

STABI LI ZER JACK BOX MOUNTI NG

Stabilizer jack box nounting bolts were identified by the UL
Field Representative as 1/2 in., Grade 8, with torque
speci fications of 370 ft-Ib.

Page 75 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 11 of 19

Nurmber of bolt(s) |less than the specified torque: None
Number of bolt(s) inaccessible to torque verification: Six

U trasonic inspection of the stabilizer jack box nounting bolts
reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

Al bolts were present.

STABI LI ZER EXTENSI ON CYLI NDER

The stabilizer extension cylinder rods were undanmaged.

The rod to barrel seals did not |eak hydraulic fl uid.

The extension cylinders were then tested for drift by setting the
stabilizers and attaching dial indicators to the stabilizers.

The unit was then allowed to stand for 1 hr. with the notor shut
off. Cylinder drift was then detected by reading the dial

i ndi cator.

The stabilizer cylinder drift was recorded in inches per hour at:

Left Front 0. 009 Ri ght Front 0. 000
Left Rear 0. 002 R ght Rear 0. 000

STABI LI ZER LEVELI NG | NDI CATORS

All installed |eveling indicators operated properly.

The leveling indicators were |egible.

HOLDI NG VALVES ON EXTENSI ON CYLI NDERS

The hol di ng val ves on the extension cylinders exhibited no signs
of external hydraulic fluid | eakage.

HYDRAULI C LI NES AND HOSES I N STABI LI ZER SYSTEM

Al hydraulic lines were undanaged.

All hydraulic lines exhibited no signs of external hydraulic
fluid | eakage.

STABI LI ZER | NTERLOCK

The stabilizer interl ock perfornmed properly.

Page 76 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 12 of 19

STABI LI ZER EXTENSI ON CYLI NDER PI NS

Al'l accessible stabilizer cylinder pins were properly aligned.
The stabilizer extension cylinder pins were properly install ed.
The stabilizer extension cylinder pins were properly |ubricated.
The stabilizer extension cylinder pins were properly retained.

U trasonic inspection of the accessible stabilizer cylinder pins
reveal ed no detectable internal flaws.

STABI LI ZER OPERATI NG CONTROLS:

The operating controls were present and undanaged.
The operating controls operated properly.

Al functions were identified, operating instructions and
war ni ngs wer e posted.

The operating controls exhibited no signs of external hydraulic
fluid | eakage.

DI VERTER VALVE:

The diverter val ve exhibited no signs of external hydraulic fluid
| eakage.

Aeri al Ladder Exam nation and Test

AERI AL LADDER VEELDMENTS:

I nspection of the aerial |adder wel dnents was conducted. No
defects were found.

MCDI FI CATI ONS OCR UNAUTHORI ZED REPAI RS

No factory unaut horized nodifications or repairs were detected.
HANDRAI LS:
I nspection of the handrails reveal ed no defects.

VERTI CAL AND/ OR DI AGONAL BRACES:

The vertical and diagonal braces were straight and contai ned no
def ect s.

Page 77 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 13 of 19

BASERAI LS

The baserails were straight and contai ned no defects.

The underside of the cradl e pad(s) showed no signs of
del ami nati ng corrosion.

RUNGS:

The foll ow ng rungs had damaged or nissing rung covers. These
results are nonconpliant.

Fly Section — Rung(s) 16
I nspection of the rungs reveal ed no defects.

FOLDI NG STEPS ON FLY SECTI ON:

The folding steps on the fly section operated properly.

SLI DE BLOCKS:

Al l accessible slide blocks exhibited no signs of wear and were
properly secured.

EXTENSI ON SHEAVES:

Al'l accessi bl e extension sheaves exhi bited no signs of wear

EXTENSI ON CABLES:

Al'l accessible cables were found to be undamaged.
The extension cables did not have excessive sl ack

EXTENSI ON | NDI CATOR:

The extension indicator was found to be accurate.

ELEVATI ON | NDI CATOR:

The el evation indicator was found to be accurate and operated
properly.

LADDER RUNG ALI GNVENT | NDI CATOR

The | adder rung alignnent indicator was found to be accurate and
operated properly.

Page 78 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 14 of 19

LADDER CRADLE

STOP

The | adder cradl e was properly aligned.
The cradl e pad was undanaged.

I nspection of the | adder cradle weldnents was conducted. No
defects were found.

The | adder cradle bolts were identified by the UL Field
Representative as 1/2 in., Grade 8, wth a torque specification
of 120 ft-Ib.

Nunber of bolt(s)less than the specified torque: None

Nunber of bolt(s)inaccessible to torque verification: None

U trasonic inspection of the |adder cradle bolts reveal ed no
detectable internal flaws.

All bolts were present.

MECHANI SM

The stop nechani sm was properly aligned.

I nspection of the stop nechani smwel dnments was conducted. No
defects were found.

LADDER | LLUM NATI ON

The right base section | adder spotlights did not operate
properly. These results are nonconpliant.

MONI TOR NOZZLE

The nonitor nozzl e operated properly.

WATER SYSTEM

The manufacturer's maxi rum rated worki ng pressure for the water
system was 225 psi.

The water system has one relief valve.

The manufacturer's relief valve setting for the relief valve
| ocated bel ow the truck was 265 psi. The relief valve fully
opened at 265 psi.

The manufacturer's rated water systemflow was 1,000 gpm

Page 79 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 15 of 19

The water system has two pressure gauges.

The wat er system pressure gauges were tested for accuracy at
three settings.

For the first reading the test gauge at the top of the waterway
read 125 psig. The water system pressure gauges read as foll ows:

Locati on
Pressure Gauge No. 1: 125 psig Tail board
Pressure Gauge No. 2: 135 psig Punp Panel

For the second reading the Test Gauge read 175 psig. The water
system pressure gauges read:

Location
Pressure Gauge No. 1: 175 psig Punp Panel
Pressure Gauge No. 2: 185 psig Tail board

For the third reading the Test Gauge read 225 psig. The water
system pressure gauges read:

Locati on
Pressure Gauge No. 1: 225 psig Punp Panel
Pressure Gauge No. 2: 235 psig Tailboard

The water systemwas fully extended at 0° el evation and
hydrostatically pressurized to the manufacturer’s maxi mum rated
working pressure. It was also fully elevated while fully
retracted and rotated 360° while hydrostatically pressurized to
t he manuf acturer’s maxi rum rat ed wor ki ng pressure.

No | eakage was observed.

The flow neter(s) was/were tested for accuracy.

The actual flow as determ ned by a pitot gauge was 1,008 gpm

The waterway flow neter(s)read as foll ows:

Locati on
Fl ow Meter No. 1 840 gpmr Purmp Pane
Fl ow Meter No. 2 980 gpmr Operators Station

The following flow nmeters read off of actual flow by nore than *
10 percent. These results are nonconpliant.

Punp Panel

WATERWAY MOUNTI NG BRACKETS:

I nspection of the accessible waterway nounting brackets was
conducted. No defects were found.

Page 80 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 16 of 19

HYDRAULI C LI NES AND HOSES | N LADDER SECTI ONS

All hydraulic lines were undanaged.
All electric lines were undamaged.

All hydraulic |ines exhibited no signs of hydraulic fluid
| eakage.

LADDER Tl P CONTRCOLS:

The tip controls did not operate properly. These results are
nonconpl i ant. Found the raise and | ower controls woul dn't
activate enough to nove the | adder without a small anount of
assi stance fromthe operator's station.

The tip control levers returned to the neutral position when
r el eased.

The tip controls were undanmaged.
The |l ower controls would override the upper controls.

The tip controls were properly | abeled and the |abels were
| egi bl e.

Operation timng tests were then conducted to verify that the

| adder tip control operating speeds did not exceed the

requi renents expressed in the standard. The actual |ength of the
| adder, as neasured fromthe hinge pin to the | adder tip, was 62
ft. The operating functions of rotation, elevation/ |owering,
and extension/retraction were tinmed to determ ne the maxi mum
operating speed for each function.

Rotation (2.0 ft/s all owabl e)

90 degree rotation
Left: 188. 00
Ri ght : 147. 00

El evation (1.0 ft/s all owabl e)

45 degree El evation
Rai se: 187. 00
Lower : 463. 00

Extension (0.5 ft/s) 20 ft.

Parti al Extension

Ext end: 264. 00
Retract: 112. 00

The ladder tip control timng tests were within the required
limts outlined in the standard.

Page 81 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 17 of 19

LOAD TESTS:

The | oad test was not conducted due to excessive corrosion in the
torque box and main frame. These results are nonconpliant.

STABI LI ZER OPERATI ONAL AND TI M NG TESTS

The operation of all stabilizer functions was observed during the
operation and timng tests. Al functions operated nornally.

The stabilizers were tined while deploying fromthe fully stowed

position to a position allow ng normal operation of the aerial
The depl oynent tinme for the stabilizers was 26 s.

Page 82 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 18 of 19

CONCLUSI ON

The aerial device covered by this Report has been evaluated for
conpliance with the applicable provisions of Standard NFPA 1911, current
Edi ti on. I ssuance of a UL Certificate of Inspection for Aerial Devices
is contingent upon correction in accordance wth the mnufacturer's
recommendati ons of those itens found not to be in accordance with the
Standard and neeting the requirenents of all test work not yet conpl eted,
i f any.

Specifically, Certification of the subject aerial device is contingent
upon:

Repair or replacenent of all torque box menbers with del am nating
corrosion.

Repair of the unit nmain franme defects.

Repair of stabilizer structural conponent wel dnent defects.

Repair or replacenent of all danaged or nissing rung covers.
Repair of the ladder illum nation.

Repair of the ladder tip controls.

Repair or replacenent of all inaccurate aerial water systemfl ow
net ers.

Page 83 of 99



Agenda ltem #16.2.

Proj ect: 18FES31299 Page 19 of 19

Comments / Cbservations for Infornational Purposes Only:

RUNGS - Found the rung cover at rung 16 on the fly section to be
[ oose/ damaged

LADDER | LLUM NATI ON - Found the right side base |ights to both be
i noperative.

HYDRAULI C PUMP - Note: Fluid detected on the generator hydraulic
punp.

UNIT MAIN FRAME - Excessive corrosi on detected between the nmi nfrane
[ayers.

Corrosion between the frame rail |ayers caused the mai nfrane cross
menber above the rear axle to bend and deform

SLI DE BLOCKS - Note: One slide block appears to have been installed
backwards on the right side of the second section.

For details, such as bolt torque, specific weldments requiring repair,
and ot her problem areas, see the Report text.

Very Truly Yours,

Brian Lawton

Bri an Lawt on
Fi re Equi pment Services
Phone No. (877)UL-HELPS (Option 2)

Page 84 of 99



Agenda Item #16.3.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Scale Replacement for DPW - Recycling & Transfer Division
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Public Works
Staff Contact: Diane Boyce, Director of Public Works

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

In September, the Town of Hooksett bid out a new vehicle scale for the Recycling & Transfer Station.
The following bids were received:

Fairbanks - $67,112 (includes pit and site work)
Advanced - $82,995 (includes pit and site work)
BTEK - $91,500 (includes pit and site work)

Northeast - $89,521 (includes pit and site work)

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The Town voted to raise and appropriate $65,000, with funds coming from the Solid Waste Disposal
Special Revenue Fund. The remaining amount would come from the budget.

RECOMMENDATION:

I recommend that the Town Council accept the bid for the Recycling & Transfer Station vehicle scale
from Fairbanks in the amount of $67,112.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Motion to accept the bid from Fairbanks in the amount of $67,112 for the Recycling & Transfer Station
vehicle scale.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

ATTACHMENTS:
Fairbanks 2018 Bid

Page 85 of 99



Agenda Item #16.3.

Town of Hooksell, NH Pete Dayotas i
RE.: Replacement truck scale, Bid #18-09 Fairbanks Scales
35 Main Streel 134 Mendon Street, Bellingham, MA (12019
Hooksett, NH 03106 508 561 7496 (cell)
Phone: 603 485 8471 800 232 (252 {office)
508 966 2137 (fax)
pdayotas@fairbanks.com

Quotation 2018-90 — Scale for existing Pii= 70°X10” Fairbanks Tundra, Date: September 5th, 2018

airf Fairbanks 60° X 1 {} ton capacity, Tundra
60" X10° XL pit style truck scale designed to fit in :
Tundra I"it existing/madified foundation. Scale utilizes eight :
scale Stainfess steel, hermetically sealed load cells. :

Cells arc optically isolated via Inlalogix
techinology {fiber optics) providing superior
lightning protection. Load cells have a 25 year
warranty including lightaing damage while
serviced by Fairbanks authorized agent per
warrapty statement. Scelc has a 5 year
weighbridge warranty. Price includcs ail
weighbridge steel and rebar for concrete deck
pour. Scale includes mew coping angle for
scale deck and retro-fit checking and bumpers.
33008 Manholes New manhole rings and covers to be cast into 3.0 $468.00 § $1,404.00
conereie deck For aceess into pit {O.D. = 30",
6" deep; 1.3, — 22.57).
31675 Indicator Fairbanks I'60! 1 Intalogix based Instrument. 10 95600 | §956.00
Instrament inchades interface o send weight data
to (I8 software pragram. Indicator oflors
“ghosting tcchnology” which allows scale
operator to “zhost outr™ up to four bad Toad cclls
and conlinue o weigh with no down time.
Indicator will interact with existing 295 printer.
27720 Remote Faivbanks {601 series remote display (required 1.0 $812.00 | $812.00
displny on new or modificd installations by NIT weights
and measurcs). Enables yesident to scc scale is a
zere before driving on and see weight from
scale, Remote display to be mounted on scale
house or behind window.
IR078 Installation Installation and calibration of one 60°X 10" 1.0 $3,620.00 | §3,620,00 :
Tundra 100 (on capacity truck scale during {
normal working honrs Monday — Priday, 8AM- i
SPM by Non-union Feirbanks technicians . Price
mncludes calibration with heavy capacity test nait
and accepiance by the state of New Hampshire
as & legal for frade weighing machine,

Page 86 of 99



Agenda Item #16.3.

Q8079d

Removal of existing 6{) X 10" Howe scale with
disposal on site.

1.0

By Town

Per spee.

93079

Fousdation
work

Founndation work to accept now Hairbanks
‘l'undra madel scale including: saw cutting out
140 linear feet of existing pit coping down 127,
place new coping, form, and pour with 4000 psi
concicte, form vp cight tlew picrs per Fairbanks
certified drawing, drill, dowel/pin into floors and
walls, pour 4000 psi concerete, form concrete
deck using galvenized decking, tie rebar, set
marnhole yings and covers, and powr using
4000psi concrete with broom finish
{approximately 13 vards of concrete). Deck
should cure for 28 days. All foundation work
wirtanted for 1 year. Fairbanks nol responsible
tor existing foundation.

Fairbanks provides rebar for deck pour

1.0

$30,000.00

Sitc waork by
town as
written in
spec, or this
option can
be included
and added to
total bid

980K

Crane

Off-loading scale from flatbed {heaviest load —
5,0001b bundle) and setting weighbridge in
prepared pit. Two crane charges are required
{une charge 10 un-load scale, and one charge to
install scale in modified pil). Work can be
pravided with excavator or loader operated by
the town,

By Town

Per spec

93729

Calibration
agreement

5 Year pre-paid calibration agreement. Serviee
includes annual visit with beavy capacity test
truck, calibration with State acceptance to
handbook 44 1olerances and paperwork decming
the scale is [egal for trade, Price is {or years
2019-2023. {2018 Installation includes
calibration)

19

$2.125.00
$425.00/yr.

Add if
desired

Split
freight

Freight

Split ficight, Scale ships with another area load
(o save on frsight costs. Scale has a 6 week lead
titme, ships ot of Meriden, MS 39307,
Instrumentation ships out of 81 Johosbury, VT
058{9

1.0

$3,500.00

$3.500.00

Product Total:

($67,112.00 with site work excluding demo and lifling service)

$37,112.00

Quclation valic for 10 days, Terms: Milestone | — Foundation compiction, Milcstene <2 —Fquipmend shipment, Milestoae 3 — Tnstallafiom complation, invaices due net
30 days froas dele of inveice opon aparoved crodit. lovaices are duss net 30 days fiom date of inveice wpon approved cred . Plzase add appensriats sales tax caless

cxemplion cernificate applics (N11= tax froc stetc). Customer responsible for 500 1' 5. F soil bearing capacity.

Lairbunks nol respousible for siructural indegrity of exisime scate fonndation,

Quotatg% by: At &gf eésérs Accepted by:

Date:

Page 87 of 99




Agenda ltem #16.3.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The foitowing provisions form pad of the quctation as express agreements between Fairbanks Scales {("Company”} and the Buysr govarning the temrs
and conditions of the sale, aubject ta modification only in witing signed by the local manager or an exesutive officer of the Company. In the even: of any
differences botween thasa terms and conditions and those of Buyar, Buyar ackrowledges that notwithstanding anyihing to the contrary, that these tens
and conditions shali prevail and Buyer's signing of this quotation or accepting the goods and services to be delivered hareunder shall be concusive
proof theraof.

1. If the order is under and according to & Company dezler ar distributor centract with Buyer in force at the time o acceptance. the provisions of sush
contract will control excapt as exprassily otherwise provided on the ‘ace hereof.

2. Malkenanks Seales Inc. {the "Company™! warrants and sgrees that &, wilhin gre (1) year after instaktztion or 15 months from date of shipment,
whichever occurs first, any part purchased froms the Cormpany should fail because of defective matsrial or workmanship i1 ke manufacture and the
Corpany be notified prompliy in writng of the nature of the defect, the Company will, (if Buyer's account with the Compary is then and remains current),
during normal working hours, rapaic or redlace such part, free of charge, provided the Buyer gays travel expense to and fram the nearest Fairbanks
Scales Customer Support Center, or Fairbanks Autharized Distribution Center, or in <ase of a replacement, shipping expenses fram ils factory. (Travel
charges and shipping expenses so ncured duriag the first 30 days following instailalion will te paid by the Company). It is the Campany's scle
discretion whether to raplace or repalr the part coverad under this warranty. The Company reserves (he night to replace any defeclive part with 2
repaired part from its warranty steck. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, this waranty is voltable af the discrotion of the
Cormpany if the product has been instalted by anyone olher than the Company or an autherized distribulor of the Company or has been subjected io
kmproper installation, misuse, negligend handling, alteration, acclden! or impronor repalrs or modifications. Any warrantiss with respect to machinery,
apparatus, accessonies, aticles or mater als not manufactured by the Company shall be limied to those of tha respective ranulacturer thereof, I any,
which the Company may be permitted to pass on to the Buyer. Under this provision, the Company will be deemed to have manufactured only lhose
arlicles bearing the Comnpany's name-plate or trademark.

3. Unless and untll al! sums {howaver evidenced) payak!e in respect of tha sale and defivery aof the goods have been fully paid in morey and satisfied:
(a) the gocds shall remain sirctly persanal property, Fowever affived to reakty fitke thereof znd ownership thereof shall remain in Campany. and Buyear
shali kaep the proserty insured and free from liens or encumbrances, pay af taxes thercon, make gooc all iess, damage, or deterioration, and take all
steps necessary to preserve e Company's tifle, including the exaculion and filing of all insiruments nacessary for such purpose. (b} Company shall
have, and in the evert of defauk in the terme Fereof, may exercise curautatively and not in the slternative, all rights and reamedies pravided by the
applicabla laws of the jurisclciion, as if expressly herein so provided, end, in so far as permitted by such laws, may declare all surns payable herewader
immadiate y due and payable, may take possession of the propeiy or any part thereof wherever found, and may sefl the same al pubtic or private safe
on such lerms as it may deam advisable, giving Buyer 10 days written notice of the time and place of the sale, at which Company may bid and become a
Buyer, the praceeds of such sale, shall be applied, in the order stafed, 10 the cosls and the expanses of search, seizure, ramaval, starage,
aruadtisernen:, sale, collection and enferecement, to interest on the amount due and unpaid purchase price, and 10 any other sums owing b the sompany
by Buyar, any sxcess shall be remitted to Suyer and the Buyer shall torthwith pay any dediciency.

4. Except az olherwise exprass v stated on the face of this acknowledgment: The goods shall be deliverad F.0.B. cars, Company's faclory, the prices
charged sha'l ba the Company’s piices regularly established at time of shipment, all stated discounts shall apply o list lices; Buyer shall, in addifion,
pay all stipping and handling charges fram fackery, or their equivalent, and also Eaxes an the sale, delivery or use. Nevertheless, in all cases: Gompany
reservas the right o e.ect termns of payment C.0.D., SDBIL, of Net 3C days after shipment and accounts past due shali bear inferest at the highest laaful
conlract rate, and Buyer shall pay all cos's and expenses, including attornay's fees, incurred in collecling the same.

5. The order is sublact 7o cancaliation by Buyer {a) only as to 2tandard products rot the subjest of the second sentence hereof, (D) ondy prior 10 shipment
or comaencement of any sibe worlc by or for the Company in connection therew'th, and {¢) then only an the paymant to Conpany of 20%, af tha net price
as apreed liguidatac demages, wir ch Buyar agrags to pay. Orders involving custom product or product te be manufactured or modified for a particular
customer of its particular applicaticn are not subject to cancellation; any such atte-npted cancellalion shall constitile a breach of cunitract, ent Uing the
Company to all remmedies available 1o it at law.

6. THE COMPANY'S WARRAMNTICS AS SETTORTH HEREIN ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE IM LIEU OF, AND BUYER HEREBY WAVES, ALL OTHER
VEBRRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLED, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY ANDIOR
FITNESS FOR A PARTCULAR FURPOSE.

7. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE COMPANY HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR LIQIIDATED BAMAGES OR FOR INC|DENTAL,
COLLATERAL CONSEQUENTIAL OR SPECIAL DAMAGES DR FOR THE LOSS OF PROFITS, OR FOR ACTUAL LOSSES OR FOR LOSS OF
FRODUCTION OR PROGRESS OF CONSTRUCTION, WHETHER RESULTING FROM DFI1 AYS IN DELIVFRY (OR PFRFORMANCF, BRFACH 0F
VWIARRANTY, CLAIMS OF INDORRECT WEIGHING, CLAIMS OF OR FOR NEGLIGENT MAMUFACTURE, ACTS OF GOD, OR OTHERWISE. THE
AGGRFEGATE TOTAL LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY UNDER THIS CONTRACT, WHETHER FOR. BREACH OF WARRANTY OR OTHERWISE,
SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE CONTRACGT PRICE. BUYER AGREES TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COMPANY FOR ALL
CLAIMS BY [HIRD PARTIES, WHETHER FUR BUSINESS LOSS, PERSONAL INJURY OR OTHERNWISE, WHICH EXTEND BEYOND THE
FOREGOING LIMITATICNS ON THE COMPANY'S LIABILITY. H

8. SHIPMENT DATE: At (he lime the order is placed lhe cusiomer will be rofifed of the shipping date of the scale. The Company wil manufaclure the
scale in order ko meat the shipping date. If the customer delays the shipmani of the scalm by mara than five (8) days, within ten {10} working days, prar
to the schedule shipping dale, a wenly (20%}) percent charge will ba assessed to the custamer.

Page 88 of 99



Agenda Item #16.3.

UNITED STATES AND CANADIAN
FAIRBANKS SCALES WARRANTY

Fairbanks Scales Inc. (the “Company™) warrants and agrees that If, within one (1) year afler installation vr 15 months from date of shipment,

whichever occurs first,

(i) any product purchased from the Company sholdd fail because of defective material or workmanship in its manufacture, or

(ii) any product purchased from the Cornpany which is equipped with Intalogix Techrology (excluding driver assist tenminals and peripheral

devices, including, but not limited to, priners, remote displays etc.) should fail due ta lightning, the Company will repair o replace such

producl, free of charge.

Further, the Company warrents and agrees thal if, within five (5} years after installation or 66 months from the date of shipment, whichever

ooeurs First,

{i) any truck scale structiral steel welgh bridge,

{ii} any railroad track scale structural steel weigh bidge, or

{iii} any truck scale or railroad treck scale original load cell (inciuding load cells damaged by Hghtning), purchased fram the Company should fail

baczuse of defective matetlal or workmanship, the Company will repair or replace such itein, free of charge, provided that

{a} the scale is cquipoed with Intalogix Technology,

{b} scrvice is perforened a minimum of bwice per year by a service entity autharized by the Campany pursimnt to a Preventive Maintenznce

Agreement, and such Preventive Maintenance Agreement must remain in effeci for the enlire duretion of the warranty period without any

lapses, und

{c} the Buyer shali pay for afl lzbor required te perform this warranty, other than labor incurred within one (1) year aftet Installation or 15

months from date of shipment, whichever ocours first, which will be paid by the Company.

lurther, the Company warrants and agrees that if, within twenty-five (25) years after Installation,

(i) any truck scate original medel PR6221 load cell [including load cells damaged by fightning), purchased from the Company should fail i

because of defective material or workmanship, the Company will repair or replace such item, free of charge, provided that

{a) the scalz Is equippad with Intaloglk Technology,

{bz} =ctvize |5, and has boen continuously since the scale was installed, performed a minimum of twice per year by a service entity authorized

by the Company pursuant to a Preventive Maintenance Agreerment, and such Preventive Maintenance Agreement must remain in effect for the

entire duration of the warranty period without any lapses, and

(c) the Buyer shall pay for all labor required to parform this warranty, other than labor Incusred within one (1) year after installation or 15

manths from date of shipment, whichever occurs first, which will be paid by the Company.

1n the case of any warranty contained herein,

(7} Buyer must promptly notify the Company, In writing, of the nature of the possible defect being claimed hereunder,

(i) Buyer's account with the Company must be current at the time a claim for warranty hereunder is made, and must remain current

thereafter,

(i) All work by the Company wil be perfosmed during normal business howrs,

{iv} The Company, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to replace or rapair the product covered inder this warranty,

{v) The Company, in its sole discretion, reserves the righl to replace any d=fective part with a repaired part from Es warranty stock,

{vi} The Buyer will pay lravel axpense 1o and from Lthe nesrest Falrbuanks Scales Cuslumer Support Center, or Fairbanks Authorized Distribution

Center, or in case of a replacement, shipping expenses from its factory, except that travel charges and shipping expenses so incurred during ;

the first 30 days following instaliztion will be paid by the Company, and ;

{vi’) The Buyer will be responsible for calibration fees except for calibration fees incurred within the first 30 days Following instaliation wil] be

pald by the company. i

Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, this warranty is voidable at the discretion of the Campany if the praduct has been i

installed by anyone other than the Company or an authorized distributor of the Company or has been subjected to improper instaliation,
!
i

misuse, neghigent handling, alteration, accident, damage by firc, watcr or act of Gad, ar improper repairs or moditications.

Any warranties with respect to machinery, apparatus, accessortes, articles ar materials not manufactured by the Company shall be fimited to
thase of the respective manufacturer 1hereof, if any, which the Company may be germitted to pass on Lo the Buver, Under th's provision, the
Company will be deemed lo have manulaclured only those artlies bearing the Company’s name-plate or trademark,

THE COMPANY'S WARRANTIES AS SET FORTH HEREIN ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE IN LJEU OF, AND BUYER HEREBY WAIVES, ALL OTHER

WARRANTIES, EXPRESS UR IMFLIED, INCLUDING, WITHCUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND/OR :
FITNESS FOR A PARTICIHLAR PURPOSE. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTAMNCES SHALL THE COMPANY HAVE ANY LIABILITY FOR LIQUIDATED i
DAMAGES OR FOR TNCIDENTAY, COLEATTRAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR SPECIAL DAMAGES OR FOR THE LOSS OF PROFITS, OR FOR ACTUAL k
LOSSES OR FOR LOSS CF PRODUCTION OR PROGRESS OF CONSTRUCTION, WHETHER RESULTING FROM DELAYS IN DELIVERY QR i

PERFQRMANCE, BREACH OF WARRANTY, CLAIMS OF INCORRECT WEIGHING, CLAIMS OF OR FQR NEGLIGENT MANUFACTURE, ACTS OF
GCD, OR OTHERWISE, THE AGGREGATE TOTAL LIASILLIY OF 1ME COMPANY UNDER THIS CONTRACT, WHETHER TOR BREACH OF
WARRANTY OR OTHERWISE, SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE CONTRACT PRICE, BUYER AGRITS TG INDFMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS i
THE COMPANY FOR Afl CLAIMS BY THIRD PARTIFS, WHFTHFR FOR BUSINESS LCSS, PERSONAL INJURY OR OTHERWISE, WHICH EXTEND
BEYOND THE FOREGOING LIMITATIONS ON THE COMPANY'S LIABILITY

Page 89 of 99



Page 90 of 99



Agenda Item #16.4.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Grant Drive Drainage Project
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Public Works
Staff Contact: Diane Boyce, Director of Public Works

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

Recently, it came to our attention that a large drainage pipe on Grant Drive needed to be replaced.
We did a bid for the drainage pipe. The following bids were received:

Advanced Excavating $94,055
Northeast Earth Mechanics $97,800
J. Cardillo & Sons $121,886.30

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

$94,055 to come from the Capital Reserve Drainage Upgrades (presently $281,495.22 in the
account)

RECOMMENDATION:

| recommend that the Council accept the bid from Advanced Excavating in the amount of $94,055 for
the Grant Drive Drainage Project.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Motion to accept the bid from Advanced Excavating in the amount of $94,055 for the Grant Drive
Drainage Project.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

Page 91 of 99



Page 92 of 99



Agenda Item #16.5.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Municipal Legal Services (RFP #18-06)
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The Town received six (6) bids for RFP #18-06 Municipal Legal Services.

Wadleigh, Starr & Peters, PLLC
Donahue, Tucker & Ciandella, PLLC
Upton & Hatfield, LLP

Drummond Woodsum

Mitchell Municipal Group, PA
Garden Fulton & Waugh, PLLC

A 5-panel Town committee interviewed three (3) of the above bidders. The recommendation from
this committee is to change our current legal representation from Drummond Woodsum to the
Mitchell Municipal Group, PA.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
To be determined based on award of bid.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
To be determined based on award of bid.

RECOMMENDATION:

Change our current legal representation from Drummond Woodsum to the Mitchell Municipal Group,
PA.

SUGGESTED MOTION:

Council motion to approve Mitchel Municipal Group, PA for the Town of Hooksett municipal legal
services effective TBD.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:

We have used the current legal firm for the last several years and, after doing interviews, the staff
interviewers felt it was time for a change and agreed unanimously on the recommendation. The staff
committee included the town planner, code enforcement officer, finance director, town administrator
and administrative services/ human resources coordinator.

Page 93 of 99



Agenda Item #16.5.

Page 94 of 99



Agenda Item #16.6.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Health Insurance Renewal Rates Effective January 1, 2019
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The Town's annual medical and dental renewal rates for effective date January 1, 2019 were
announced by HealthTrust on October 10, 2018. At the Town Council's meeting of that same
evening, Town Administrator, Dr. Dean E. Shankle, Jr., informed the Council under his Town
Administrator's Report of the following:

e All medical plans increased by 9.00%

e All dental plans increased by 2.30%
There was a brief discussion amongst the Council, led by Councilor Winterton, on the possibility of
having employee premium contributions to medical plans that the Town currently pays 100% of the
premium.

As the Town's Benefits Administrator, | strongly encourage the Council to keep the current
structure for both medical and dental plan types and employee premium contributions. It
appears that the cost of most everything is rising, however employees do not reap a COLA
increase, and non-union employees received only a 2% wage increase on July 1, 2018. These
same employees have now gone from paying $10 co-pays and no deductibles to $20/$40 co-
pays and some service deductibles of $1,000/$3,000. Let's have the dust settle with our
HealthTrust-Anthem plans and premium contributions as they are today. EMPLOYMENT
ATTRACTION AND RETENTION IS KEY TO A STABILE TOWN GOVERNMENT.

Employees are looking for stability in their benefits. The Town has been through many changes in
the past couple of years:

January 2015 & 2016 - Town completed a 6 month RFP process and contracted with NH Interlocal
Trust (NHIT) Harvard Pilgrim = all employees had to be educated on plan types, select a plan,
complete enrolliment forms, get new cards, set-up their Primary Care Physician's, change
pharmaceutical vendors and adapt to new wellness programs.

March 2016 - received notice for January 2016 NHIT renewal of 27% increase. Town added a new
benefit plan to cushion the blow of this rate notice which meant = all employees had to be educated
on the plan type, weight the pros and cons to select the plan, complete enroliment forms, get new
cards, and set-up their Primary Care Physician's.

January 2017 - Town completed a 6 month RFP process and contracted back to HealthTrust-Anthem
= many employees were now leaving the comfort of a familiar POS plan to venture into HMO plans
with co-pays & deductibles with FSA & HRA accounts to all employees had to be educated on plan
types, select a plan, complete enroliment forms, get new cards, set-up their Primary Care Physician's,
change pharmaceutical vendors and adapt to new wellness programs.

Page 95 of 99



Agenda Item #16.6.

Open enrolliment notifications for plans effective January 1, 2019 go out to all employees in mid-
November to include rate sheets (employee contributions). The Council will need to make a decision
at their meeting of 10/24/18 on employee premium contributions to both medical and dental.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
All medical plans increased by 9.00%
All dental plans increased by 2.30%

RECOMMENDATION:

As the Town's Benefits Administrator, | strongly encourage the Council to keep the current
structure for both medical and dental plan types and employee premium contributions.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Council motion to keep the current structure for both medical and dental plan types and employee
premium contributions for effective date January 1, 2019.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
| agree.

Page 96 of 99



Agenda Item #16.7.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council
Title: Fall Tax Bill Newsletter
Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Nick Germain, Project Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

For the last few years, town staff have sent out an informational newsletter to accompany tax bills.
Details usually include information on special town events, advertisments about volunteer
opportunities, and helpful explanations about town policies or procedures.

Council usually decides if the newsletter will be sent out and provides editorial oversight. Staff will
provide a compete draft as available prior to the Council's session.

This newsletter will come out sometime in November in the same envelope as the tax bills.
FINANCIAL IMPACT:

$600-$700. Printing costs are said to have slightly increased ($40-$50 cumulative) from from last
year, per Assessing Department. By necessity town uses the same entity that sends out the tax bills.
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:

Some departments have information they like to include and staff usually get significant positive

feedback from residents about the information included.

RECOMMENDATION:
Approve the newsletter after providing editorial change requests to staff.

SUGGESTED MOTION:
Vote to approve the newsletter with the editorial request changes provided by council.

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:
Concur

Page 97 of 99



Page 98 of 99



Agenda Item #16.8.

Town Council

STAFF REPORT

To: Town Council

Title: Police Union Collective Bargaining Agreement 07/01/17-06/30/20 = Sidebar for
Union Pay Scale to include amounts for NECPI +.5%

Meeting: Town Council - 24 Oct 2018

Department:  Administration
Staff Contact: Donna Fitzpatrick, Administrative Services Coordinator

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Town of Hooksett, NH and New England Police Benevolent Association, Inc. (NEPBA) LOCAL
46 of NEW HAMPSHIRE Collective Bargaining Agreement for period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020
includes an Appendix A Union Pay Scale. Within this appendix it reads "COLA increases as per New
England Consumer Price Index (NECPI) as of December 31st + .5% will be added to a new rate
column for July 1st in years 2018 & 2019 of the 3 year contract.

An updated Appendix A Union Pay Scale has been created to now include the amounts for the
NECPI + .5% and is being submitted as a sidebar for both the union membership and the Town
Council to sign as the official document. The union membership will first sign and then bring to then
submit for the Council to then sign at their meeting of 10/24/18.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
December 2017 NECPI 1.7% +.5% = 2.2% added to Appendix A Union Pay Scale effective 07/01/18.

POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
None.

RECOMMENDATION:

Town Council sign the Police Union sidebar for Appendix A Union Pay Scale to include the amounts
for the NECPI + .5%

TOWN ADMINISTRATOR'S RECOMMENDATION:

| am not sure it is necessary since it is already part of the contract but it does clarify the exact
amount, so | agree.

Page 99 of 99



	Agenda
	7.1. TC Minutes 101018-U
	9.1. Staff Report - SR-18-043 - Pdf
	15.1. Staff Report - SR-18-046 - Pdf
	15.2. Staff Report - SR-18-045 - Pdf
	15.3. department of natural and cultural resources
	15.4. Staff Report - SR-18-057 - Pdf
	FY 2019-20 Insurance changes
	FY 2019-20 Warrant Articles

	16.1. Staff Report - SR-18-056 - Pdf
	Unassigned General Fund Balance History

	16.2. Staff Report - SR-18-042 - Pdf
	18FES31299 - KMEAL - 09-27-2018 - Hooksett FD - Hooksett NH - Aerial Inspection Report

	16.3. Staff Report - SR-18-044 - Pdf
	Fairbanks_2018_Bid

	16.4. Staff Report - SR-18-047 - Pdf
	16.5. Staff Report - SR-18-049 - Pdf
	16.6. Staff Report - SR-18-053 - Pdf
	16.7. Staff Report - SR-18-048 - Pdf
	16.8. Staff Report - SR-18-050 - Pdf

